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Chairman’s Statement =FEH&E

Dear shareholders,

All the shares (the “Shares”) of China Qinfa Group Limited (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) have
been listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 3 July 2009. The Group
is mainly engaged in the integrated coal supply chain involving
the purchase, sales, filtering, storage, blending, shipping and
transportation of coal. In 2009, amid the shadow of the global
recession resulting from the financial tsunami, the PRC Government
has launched a RMB 4 trillion stimulus package to stimulate the
economy, and succeeded in securing an 8% growth in the GDP.
The market demand for coal and other energy products has been
stabilized as a result. Benefiting from the concerted efforts of all
employees of the Group and the support of our shareholders, the
Group delivered satisfactory operating results. On behalf of the
board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
| am pleased to present to our shareholders the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2009.

SATISFACTORY OPERATING RESULTS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group achieved
revenue of RMB 3,926,993,000, gross profit of RMB 425,655,000
and operating income of RMB 257,621,000. Current profits
attributable to the Company were RMB 129,503,000. Earnings per
share were RMB 0.15.

RESUMPTION OF GROWTH IN COAL TRADE AND
SELLING PRICE

Subject to the adverse factors affecting the coal demand and prices
in the first quarter of 2009, the average monthly coal trading volume
of the Group hit a historic low of about 88,000 tonnes. As China’s
economy stabilized, the trade volume of the Group has recorded
a strong recovery since the second quarter. With the advent of
the peak season of coal consumption, the coal price has gradually
recovered. As of the fourth quarter of 2009, the average monthly
coal trading volume of the Group increased to approximately 1.37
million tonnes. The annual trade volume of coal was approximately
6.83 million tonnes, representing an increase of 7.9% compared
to 2008. The average coal selling price of the Group has also
increased from approximately RMB 432/ton in the first quarter of
2009 to approximately RMB 495/ton in the fourth quarter of 2009,
representing an increase of 14.6%. The gross margin of the coal
trade significantly increased from 3.7% in the first quarter to 12.6%
in the fourth quarter. As China’s economy continues to stabilize in
2010, the coal demand will be strong. Since the coal production in
Shanxi Province of China is lower than expected, the price of coal will
remain high in 2010 to a certain extent.
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Chairman’s Statement = EH&E

EXPANSION OF PRIME CLIENT GROUP

In addition to existing clients with whom the Group has maintained
long-term cooperation, the Group is honored to be able to establish
cooperation relationship with sizable domestic power groups,
including China Huaneng Group, China Datang Corporation and
China Guodian Corporation. The expansion of the Group’s prime
client group is an important and meaningful step in consolidating the
customer base, developing coal production and sales and exploring

income sources.

IRON ORE TRADE

In addition to the core business of coal trading, the Group started
to engage in the business of iron ore trading in 2009. Leveraging
on the Group’s experience in the coal operation business and
the international procurement network, as of 31 December 2009,
the turnover of the iron ore trading business was approximately
RMB 506,845,000. The Directors consider that in 2010, by seizing
opportunities in the iron ore market, the iron ore trading business will
be able to deliver a continuous growth without committing significant

amount of the Group’s resources.
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Chairman’s Statement XEHEE

VERTICAL INTEGRATION AND IMPROVEMENT IN THE
INTEGRATED COAL SUPPLY CHAIN

In order to secure a stable coal supply despite the fluctuating coal
prices, the Group, capitalizing on opportunities arising from the
substantial drop in coal prices and the industrial integration in 2009,
has entered into equity transfer agreements in August 2009 and
December 2009, respectively, acquiring 87.88% equity interest in
Shanxi Hun Yuan Rui Feng Coal Company Limited (L 7% )R /&
W AR E T A7) (“‘Ruifeng Coal”) at a consideration of RMB 130
million and 60% equity interest in Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan
Coal Company Limited (SBBRZHME SRR MREREKERET
A A]) (“Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal”) of Inner Mongolia at a
consideration of RMB 857 million. As of 31 December 2009, the
acquisitions had not been completed yet.

Ruifeng Coal is the owner and operator of a coal mine in Hun
Yuan County, Datong City, Shanxi Province, the PRC. The current
approved annual production capacity of the coal mine is 900,000
tonnes. The mine shaft has a coal reserve of over 59 million tonnes,
and the coal is of prime thermal grading. Located approximately
70km away from the existing coal loading station of the Group in
Datong City, the coal mine enjoys convenient transportation. It is
expected that the coal mine will commence production in the second
half of 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement =EHEE

Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal holds the mining right of a BRZHTEE R EREREEMNR
coal mine located at Dongsheng District of Ordos, the Inner FEREANSEETESESBZE MmERBEN
Mongolia Autonomous Region, the PRC. The coal mine has a — BRI SRR - ZEEm IS4 29.1
size of approximately 29.1 square kilometers with easy access FHABE  BBAREBAEEREELLY
to railways and highways, and is within 100 kilometers from the 100888 - #Fmsipg g o IR ELEE
Group’s coal loading station in Baotou. The current approved annual BehooBNE - PRLHTESR
production capacity of the coal mine is 900,000 tonnes. Ordos WBRER ERFP R EBRT#ERSEE
Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal is applying to relevant authorities of the HEREERE ILINE 300 BNE - IHIEE
PRC government to increase the annual coal output to 3,000,000 BREREEENEREE 15876 B -
tonnes. The coal mine’s reserve with granted mining rights amounts HEBWNER - ERF R ESERED N
to approximately 158.76 million tonnes. The grading is thermal coal W REBENSFTETEREHERIERBY
with low sulphur content, low to medium ash content and high WMANFHFEIBEHANLE  BESHZ N
calorific value. Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal has adopted the BERE A E A EE A A R
open cast method in coal mining in accordance with the Approval TN EREREERINCD K - ZEEE
in Relation to Fire-fighting Measures of Preliminary Design issued by HR—ZE—EFFRNE °

the Administration of Coal Industry of Inner Mongolia Autonomous

Region. The construction of underground mining tunnels has

been completed. It is expected that the coal mine will commence

operation at the end of 2010.

EXPANSION OF INTERNATIONAL COAL OPERATION EREREREEER
BUSINESS

On 19 October 2009, the Group subscribed for 7,400,000 new AEBR-_ZEZNFTATNBUER
shares of Tiaro Coal Limited (“Tiaro Coal”) at the subscription price 0.18 B T:28 Tiaro Coal Limited ([Tiaro
of A$0.18 for each share. Tiaro Coal is a company incorporated in Coall) (— B FR M 3= 2 E N 55 i
the State of New South Wales in Australia with its shares listed on BB AT  FENEEHEERE  HEIR
the Australian Securities Exchange (the “ASE”) with the stock code MERNBE S SGHT([RAFT]) B e

of TCM, and is mainly engaged in exploration of coal. Later on, the DR EEATCM) 740 B#F IR - HEBE X R
Group exercised options to subscribe for 6 million shares of Tiaro “EENFF+_A=1+—HEEMR00.25
Coal at the exercise price of A$0.25 per share on 31 December SRITHITTHEE - 1T{ERIRMELAREE Tiaro
2009. As of 31 December 2009, the Group held a total of 13.4 million Coal 6O0EB R EH - -HE2_ZEENEF
shares of Tiaro Coal. As part of the equity investment by the Group +=-—A=+—8 ' KX&EEHHE Tiaro Coal
in Tiaro Coal, a coal off-take undertaking has been granted by Tiaro & 1,340 BRI D - fEBANEETE Tiaro
Coal to the Group, in which the Group enjoys a right of first refusal to Coal WG R E ) —Ef 4 » Tiaro Coal
the supply of all the coal and other mineral resources produced by BT AEEE KB EAGE  NEEY
Tiaro Coal or its subsidiaries. Leveraging on the Group’s expertise Tiaro Coalsk EMfB A F & ER T B I
in coal operation in China and the previous experience in investing IR EMEEEREGELEBE- (&
in Australian coal mines, the Directors believe that the acquisition By ZN £ B 1E AR B I e A S SE RS R B S AN
of equity interest in Tiaro Coal will strengthen the Group’s capability o ARFEAERMEENIEE LS

in sourcing coal overseas and managing the risk of fluctuating coal FE{= W BE Tiaro Coal AXHE 1S RE 20 — 7N
prices. AN E RGN R IR AR E K

ERBEREEES
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COMPREHENSIVE LOGISTIC FACILITIES AND
UPGRADED SERVICES

The Group ordered two 82,000 DWT dry bulk carriers from = B
AT 2Z 52 7] (China Shipbuilding Trading Company Limited) and
FRTEMBEEER A R) (CSSC Guangzhou Longxue Shipbuilding
Co., Ltd) in October and December 2009, respectively, at a total
cost of about HK$ 550 million. As the Group’s trading volume
continues to increase, the expansion and enhancement of the
Group’s fleet will strengthen the Group’s ability to control the cost of
ship transportation and mitigate the risks of ship transportation costs
fluctuation faced by the Group.

The foundation stone of Zhuhai Gaolangang public dry bulk coal
port (the “Zhuhai Terminal”) co-developed and constructed by the
Group and Hebei Port Group Co., Ltd (AdtEOEEHBR A )
(formerly Qinhuangdao Port Group (R £ 8855 E)) was laid on
28 September 2009. The total investment for the Zhuhai Terminal
will be approximately RMB1.5 billion. It is expected to commence
operation in the second quarter of 2012. Upon the completion of
Zhuhai Terminal, and taking the four existing coal loading stations of
the Group into consideration, a dominant and integrated sourcing,
transportation and sales network running across the territory of
China can be formed. It will also serve as the transshipment hub,
coal blending centre and coal storage base in southern China and
overseas markets for the Group, which will significantly enhance the
Group’s capability of coal procurement, sales, storage and blending.

Looking ahead, in 2010, the Group, being the leading private
coal operator in China, will continue to focus on operating the
coal business and improving the integration of the coal supply
chain, actively expanding domestic and foreign operations while
maintaining high quality of its products. It will pay more efforts in
implementing investment projects and continue to identify projects
with promising potential for further development.

| believe, benefiting from the competitive advantages and strength
and the business development strategy of the Group, as well as
the invaluable efforts of the board of Directors and all staff, the
Group will be able to achieve the ultimate goal of becoming a
leading international coal operator so as to maximize returns for
shareholders.

Xu Jihua
Chairman

26 March 2010
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Financial Highlights Bt %&#=

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the

last four financial years is set out below:

AEENBENETRFENES &
= BEKESREET

RESULTS E S
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006
—REAF —ETN\F TTHHE  _TTRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTR ARETRT ARETRT ARETT
Turnover EERE 3,926,993 4,192,484 3,664,632 2,850,489
Gross profit EF 425,655 559,916 571,394 235,618
Results from operating
activities KRB A 257,621 443,876 278,508 84,380
Profits before income tax TS H{ A& 7 227,564 395,299 248,316 66,682
Income tax expenses FriSfif > (98,061) (64,609) (41,065) (13,832)
Profit for the year FRRF 129,503 330,690 207,251 52,850
Coal trading volume KRESE
('000 tonnes) (FH8) 6,825 6,274 8,023 7,206
Turnover Coal trading volume
e HErEZE
5,000 10
4192 3,927 8.0
4,000 3,665 ' 8F 72 : o
- .
5 3,000} 2850 e of =
El 5
0¥ Sim
= 5 2,000 § 4t
1000 2F
L L L O 1 1 1
2006 2007 2008 2009 2006 2007 2008 2009
W Coal trading M Shipping transportation " Iron ore trading
RIRE S fiiE s HELES
Gross profit Profit for the year
ER FREF
600 350
500 300
55 o0 -
Zim Zim 200
o 300 o &
g [ué % 5 150
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0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2006 2007 2008 2009
[ Gross profit  —— Gross profit margin [ Netprofit ~ —— Net profit margin
EF ERE el el
* There was an one-off disposal gain of

IETY china qinfa Group Limited sE &3 EmERA

approximately RMB97,085,000 in 2008.
* ZEENFE-REHEREHARE
97,085,000 7T °
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006
—EEREFE ZEEN\F ZZTTEF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARETRT ARETET
Total assets BEBE 4,160,706 2,085,482 1,909,923 1,198,023
Total liabilities BERE (2,783,419)  (1,350,527)  (1,274,795) (793,230)
Total equity AR 1,377,287 734,955 635,128 404,793
Notes: PIEE -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March
2008 and became the holding company of the Group with effect
from 12 June 2009 upon the completion of the Reorganisation as
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 June 2009 (the
“Prospectus”).

The results for the three years ended 31 December 2008 and
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2008, 2007
and 2006 have been prepared on a combined basis to reflect
the results of the Group as if the group structure at the time
when the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange had been
in existence throughout the years concerned. The figures for the
three years ended 31 December 2008 have been extracted from
the Prospectus.
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MR ASEEEREEEEFEAND
BHE) BE_ZEZEN\F+=-A=+—
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management EEK Sk

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (83 %), aged 53, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. XU is principally responsible for the
Group’s overall business strategic development. Mr. XU has more
than 18 years of management and operation experience in the
logistics and coal operation industries. In 1996, Mr. XU acquired
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., a member
of the Group, and has led the Group to become one of the leading
non-state-owned coal operation companies in China in terms of
annual coal trading volume. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr.
XU was a manager in the Trading Department of Qinhuangdao
Goods Exchange Center from 1992 to 1994. During the period from
1989 to 1991, Mr. XU was the deputy head of Materials Bureau of
Haigang District, Qinhuangdao City, the PRC. Mr. XU did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
Mr. XU was appointed as a Director on 4 March 2008 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.

Ms. WANG Jianfei (T #|7R), aged 39, is the chief executive officer
of the Group and an executive Director. Ms. WANG is principally
responsible for the Group’s overall management and operation.
Ms. WANG is also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board. Before her appointment as
the chief executive officer, Ms. WANG was in charge of the finance
department, human resources department, international trading
department, investment management department and shipping
transportation department of the Group. Ms. WANG obtained
an associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles University
Foundation in consortium with Hebei Business College in 1995. Ms.
WANG completed an Executive MBA Programme sponsored by
the FEIARARZE b & AR ERLFLEITH O (Risk Capital and
Network Economy Research Center of China Renmin University)
and Bl EE IR LS| 0 (China Enterprise Management Training
Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG has more than 12 years of enterprise
management and operation experience. Before joining the Group
in 2000, Ms. WANG worked in FRMEXIER(FES)ERAA
(COFCO Industry (Qinhuangdao) Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from 1995
to 2000. Ms. WANG has been a director of Tiaro Coal Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, since 30
November 2009. Save as disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
Ms. WANG was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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EEERE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (2|B#), aged 41, is an executive Director.
Ms. LIU is principally responsible for the financial and accounting
management of the Group. Ms. LIU graduated with a bachelor
degree in auditing from R AZ (Nankai University) in 1991 and
completed a practical finance officer programme from J& & K£2
(Tsinghua University) in 2006. Ms. LIU has more than 14 years of
experience in the accounting and finance field. Prior to joining the
Group in 2005, Ms. LIU worked as an auditor in E2 & 1E/RE:t
EEBAARS T AR (Qinhuangdao Zhengyuan Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.) from 2001 to 2002. From 1995 to 2001,
Ms. LIU worked as the manager at the finance audit department of
LS SRR =S AR A A (Hebei Hengxin Certified Public
Accountants Limited Office), formerly known as =& &% :1A1E#%
T (Qinhuangdao Audit Firm). From 1991 to 1995, Ms. LIU worked in
HZE2EBMETH (Qinhuangdao City Audit Bureau). Ms. LIU did not
hold any directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years. Ms. LIU was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May
2008.

Mr. WENG Li (§3), aged 34, is the vice president of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. WENG is principally responsible for
investment management of the Group. Mr. WENG graduated with a
bachelor degree in economics major in international finance from &
JERE (Wuhan University) in June 1998. Mr. WENG subsequently
studied a graduate program in finance from EE KEAHF 5T A 27
(Graduate School of Wuhan University) during the period from May
2004 to December 2005. Mr. WENG further obtained a master
degree in economics from ELEAE (Wuhan University) in December
2008. Mr. WENG has been granted the PRC Securities Practising
Certificate (FFBIFE 522 %75 E) since 2004. Mr. WENG has more
than 10 years of assets management and investment experience.
Mr. WENG joined the Group in November 2005, and worked as
deputy general manager and general manager of the investment
management department, and president assistant. Before joining
the Group, Mr. WENG worked as an investment assistant and later
as an investment manager in the assets management department of
Changjiang Securities Company Limited (L& 5D AR A F), a
company listed in the PRC with the stock code. 000783, during the
period from June 1998 to October 2005. Mr. WENG did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years. Mr.
WENG was appointed as an executive Director on 21 April 2009.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. CHEN Wenijing (BRXX &%) , aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Dr. CHEN
is also a member of the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Board. Dr. CHEN graduated
from dbFAE (Peking University) majoring in world economics in
1977 and received his doctoral degree in economics from
K& (Nankai University) in 2006. Dr. CHEN is currently a doctoral
supervisor at the ¥9MEFEE 5 K2 (University of International
Business and Economics). Dr. CHEN now works in the B¢ &
S#CHESVERIFERT (Chinese Academy of International Trade and
Economic Cooperation) as a researcher. In 1996, Dr. CHEN was
granted a special government allowance by the State Council for his
outstanding contribution in social science affairs for the nation. Dr.
CHEN did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during
the last three years.

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Z B ) , aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. HUANG
is also a member of the audit committee and the chairperson
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board. Mr. HUANG graduated from i AZ (Zhong Nan
University), formerly known as & #8267 (Chang Sha Railway
College), majoring in railway transportation in 1965. Mr. HUANG
has been appointed as the legal representative of &R & X REH
#%& (Guangdong Traffic Transportation Association) since 2007.
Mr. HUANG served as the head of EME#%E (Guangzhou Port
Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed as a visiting professor
by b/&/&% X2 (Shanghai Maritime University), formerly known as
888 Ep7 (Shanghai Maritime Transportation College), in 1996.
Mr. HUANG is also a senior engineer in railway transportation and
has enjoyed a special government allowance granted by the State
Council since 1992 for his outstanding contribution in engineering
technology for the nation. Mr. HUANG did not hold any directorship
in any listed companies during the last three years.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2/85)8), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of science in Business
Administration from Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Prior to joining Xinyi Glass
Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the financial controller of a
subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board, for over three years and had worked with an international
accounting firm in Hong Kong for five years. Mr. LAU did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chief Financial Officer and company secretary of the Company

Mr. MAK King Pui, Ricky (E=3%), aged 39, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company. Mr. MAK has
over 14 years of experience in auditing and financial management.
Mr. MAK graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (&
752 T KE) (formerly known as Hong Kong Polytechnic (/82 T
&[T ) with a bachelor degree of Arts in accountancy. Mr. MAK is a
non-practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. MAK worked for China Aoyuan Property Group Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board with the stock code: 3883; a
subsidiary of TOM Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board with the stock code: 2383; and an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong. Mr. MAK joined the Group in April 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. SHEN Hongwu (GE R ), aged 37, is the vice president of the
Group. Mr. SHEN is principally responsible for the sale and marketing
operation of the Group. Mr. SHEN graduated with a bachelor
degree in economics from AL A2 (Zhongshan University) in 1995
and completed an extensive business administration curriculum
presented by the University of Cincinnati (32 3£ AB$2 A Z2) in 2001. Mr.
SHEN has more than 12 years of working experience. Before joining
the Group in 2006, Mr. SHEN worked in management-related areas
in a number of companies, including /&M E AR EBR AR
(Guangzhou Development Oil Product Sales Company Limited) and
BINERLIE HBEAR A5 (Guangzhou Zhujiang Electric Energy
Company Limited) from 1996 to 2006.

Mr. LI Yong (ZB), aged 36, is the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., a member of the
Group, and is principally responsible for the domestic shipping
transportation business of the Group. Mr. LI graduated with
a bachelor degree in timber processing from Nanjing Forestry
University (FR=MEAEZ) in June 1997 and obtained a master
degree in management from Tianjin Normal University (FZE0
HAE) in June 2004. Mr. LI has more than 10 years of working
experience. Mr. LI was appointed as the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., in February 2008. During
the period from June 2004 to February 2008, Mr. LI worked as a
project manager in Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co. Ltd.,
a connected person of the Group. Mr. LI worked as a business
manager in Qinhuangdao Huasheng Trading Co., Ltd. (£ &%
E 5 AR A 7)) during the period from August 1997 to April 2004.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved a significant milestone on 3 July 2009 with all
the Shares listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. The
Directors believe that the successful listing of the Shares on the main
board of the Stock Exchange creates significant advantages to the
future business development of the Group as a whole.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group is principally engaged
in the coal operation business involving purchase and sales,
filtering, storage, blending, shipping and transportation of coal.
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group continued
to focus on these business activities. Leveraging its experience in
the coal operation business, the Group started engaging in the iron
ore trading business by entering into several sales and purchase
contracts in 2009.

Since September 2008, with the outbreak of the global financial
crisis, there was severe adverse impact on the global economies and
the demand for energy products, including coal products. As a result
of the global economic contraction and the slow economic growth
in China, the demand and the selling prices for thermal coal in China
were significantly and adversely affected during the first half of 2009.
Under such circumstances, the selling prices and the demand for
coal from the Group’s customers decreased substantially during that
period.

Although the business environment was extremely unfavorable in the
first half of 2009, the Group recovered considerably and performed
well in the second half of 2009 following the recovery of the world
economy. The Group was able to expand its coal customer base
and establish business relationship with several new large stated-
owned power plants such as China Guodian Corporation (-7 B EE
£[E A 7R]) and China Datang Corporation (B K EEE A &)). The
coal trading volume rebound significantly from approximately 1.55
million tonnes for the first two quarters in 2009 to approximately 5.28
million tonnes for the last two quarters in 2009 resulting in a total of
approximately 6.83 million tonnes for the year ended 31 December
2009. The Group even achieved an average monthly coal trading
volume of over one million tonnes in the fourth quarter of 2009.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The selling price of coal has also increased since the first quarter
of 2009. The Group’s average selling price of coal increased by
approximately 14.6% from approximately RMB432 per tonne in
the first quarter of 2009 to approximately RMB495 per tonne in the
fourth quarter of 2009.

In addition, taking advantage of the Group’s wide supplier range and
blending capabilities, the Group can source coal from the cheapest
location, both domestically and abroad. The amount of imported
coal increased to approximately 67.2% of the Group’s total coal
purchase for the year ended 31 December 2009, as compared with
approximately 13.1% of the Group’s total coal purchase for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

In September 2009, the Group’s third and fourth coal loading
stations began operation in Inner Mongolia, which has strengthened
the coal processing capability of the Group in the region. In addition,
with the global economy becoming stabilised and the continuous
economic growth in China, the international demand for coal is
expected to increase, so as the international coal prices. The
Directors expect that the Group will strengthen the domestic coal
trading business in China in 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group also engaged
in the business of iron ore trading. The Directors consider that
the iron ore trading business can be further developed without
committing significant amount of resources. The turnover generated
from the iron ore trading business during the year ended 31
December 2009 was approximately RMB506.8 million. The Directors
expect that these business activities will continue in 2010.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group’s shipping business has also significantly revived in
the second half of 2009. As the Group is able to operate its fleet
of vessels efficiently in order to maximise the utilization rate, the
overall turnover for 2009, including charter hire income from third
parties and members within the Group, only decreased marginally
as compared with 2008. The total segment turnover for shipping
transportation for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
approximately RMB206.8 million, representing a slight decrease
of approximately RMB3.8 million or 1.8% from approximately
RMB210.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2008. With the
global economy getting back into stabilisation, the Directors expect
that the performance of the Group’s shipping business will further
improve in 2010.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Trading Volume

Revenue (expressed in RMB’000) YA (AN BT r2lR)

Coal Trading KB5S

Iron Ore Trading HRAES
Shipping g

Trading volume EBEZE
(expressed in "000 tonnes) (A FHEZ)T)
Coal Trading HRE S

Iron Ore Trading BEAES

EHmEE)

REBZMEEE TR _ZEZTNFT¥
FREBEE - ARAEEA] BT
BEMBKURERANAX —2F
NFERBLZEB(BREREEF=ZFRE
SERKERARZHERAN)R-ZZZN
FENETHR -HE=-Z 7ﬂ¢+;
A=+—BLEFE MEE®HD A
©E B AR 206,800,0007T f%z
EEEN\F+_A=+—HIEFEH
AR #210,600,0007T © B AR
3,800,000 70 8k 1.8% ° [E & & Bk & 75 B
B EFERASECMEXBR=-Z
—TFE—HNE -

gy E) ]
WARESE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2009 2008
—2BRE —TT)\F
3,361,403 4,050,170
506,845
58,745 142,314

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—BHLEE

2009 2008
—2BRE —TT)\F
6,825 6,274
1,158 -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Trading Volume (continued)

As a result of the global financial crisis starting from the second half of
2008 and the slowdown of the economic growth in China during the
first quarter of 2009, the Group experienced a significant decrease
in the turnover in the coal trading and the shipping business in the
first half of 2009. However, both businesses rebound significantly
in the second half of 2009 which enabled the Group to recover a
significant portion of its operating loss increased during the first half
of 2009. The Group achieved a coal trading volume of approximately
6.8 million tonnes in 2009 representing an increase of approximately
0.5 million tonnes or 7.9% from approximately 6.3 million tonnes
in 2008 because of the growing electricity consumption and
the corresponding increase in the demand for coal-fired power
generation in the PRC. Both the coal selling prices and the coal
trading volume remained at low levels during the first quarter of 2009,
but they recorded a significant growth starting from the second
quarter of 2009.

The average coal selling price and the coal trading volume for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2009, the six months ended 30
June 2009 and 31 December 2009 are set forth in the table below:—

ISR (E)
WAKRBZE (&)

MR ZETNFTEFRENZIRESH
EHE-—ZTNFE—FTEPRHLEL
G REER ST HE FEFH
BRBESRMEBEREBNEEEHLK
8 TEk - AT - ZMBEBR_ZTAN
FREFHYRBHRE - AEBFABE
—ETNF ¥ FEEZKEFRBZE
KEBD - ARAES MU KR A B AN
BERRIEEEN  AEBR=ZZTA
FHREBRRKESHENCOEN BT
T\ F #6305 M - 35 A0 4950 & ME =X
7.9% - —TENFE—FE  BRIHEE
BEREERESSMENELN  BEZ
TENFE_FERFEAEEER

HE _ZTNAF+_A=+—HIt=ME
FEEF BE_ZTTNF A=T+
AR —ZEZEAFE+_A=+—B1~E
A FPHEKBEEERIEREZES
PIRTER : —

Six Six
months months
Year ended 31 December ended ended

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2007
ZTTEE
Average selling price THHEEERE 443
(RMB per tonne) (BEARETT)
Average monthly trading volume ~ FHERE 5= 669
(thousand tonnes) (FuE)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Trading Volume (continued)

The Group sells coal which is sourced from both overseas and
the PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants,
cement plants and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers
are located in the coastal regions of China. Power plants, being
the major customers of the Group, purchase coal for their use
in combustion processes to produce steam for power and heat.
Cement plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production
process. Coal traders purchase coal for export to overseas markets
as well as other coal consumers in China. The following table sets
forth information regarding the Group’s coal sales by industry
segment during 2008 and 2009:

PSR ()
WANBESE(E)

AEBBEBEINFPEEANTSRE
RKEBE TEER AR MERE
FAEEP -  AEEZHEPUNTE
HENE - ARBENTIEEPEEH -
RBERANMEBRE  KELESA
REBEERRE - NEMEEBEFHE
R REK - RIKE S ERBRR -
ArgSNTIZ AR P BEEMRETOE&EE
HA - TREJIAEER-_ZFZTNER
“ETNFHMRITED #EI D AR K
HEER :

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-HLFE

2009 2008
—EENEF —TINF

Percentage of Percentage of
Net sales Net sales Net sales Net sales
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
hAAHEFE 1HBHEFH
HERE MEDL HEFR COFERaNed
ARBTR (%) ARKEFTT (%)
Power plants BB 2,018,953 60.1 3,051,855 75.4
Coal traders HRE S 799,654 23.8 361,897 8.9
Cement plants and others KT K A 542,796 16.1 636,418 15.7
Total st 3,361,403 100.0 4,050,170 100.0

In view of the downturn of the shipping industry in the first half of
2009 caused by the global financial crisis, the Group increased
the use of its own vessels and reduced chartering third-party
vessels in transporting coal to customers. With this measure, the
Group was able to maintain almost the same level of total segment
revenue as compared with 2008. The total segment turnover for
shipping transportation for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
approximately RMB206.8 million, representing a slight decrease of
about RMB3.8 million or 1.8% from approximately RMB210.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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FMETERREK ASEEMNERAB

WEEBRALOHEE = FkERR P
Bk o MiAZe e - ANEBES LA SR
ZEENFKEFFE D BRALLEE -
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B MEEH 2 HBWAREHARKE
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7T - PR AR H 3,800,000 703 1.8% °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross Profit Margin and Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately RMB134.2
million during the year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately
RMB425.7 million from approximately RMB559.9 million during the
same period in 2008, mainly because of the decline in the coal selling

prices.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased to approximately
10.8% from approximately 13.4% during the same period in 2008,

mainly resulting from: —

(1)  slight decrease in the gross profit margin of the coal trading
business from 12.3% for the year ended 31 December 2008 to
approximately 12.0% for the same period in 2009, which was
mainly due to the realisation of inventories purchased in 2008

when the coal price was high; and

(2) decrease in the gross profit margin of the shipping
transportation business from 29.8% for the year ended 31
December 2008 to approximately -3.6% for the same period in
2009 with the decrease in the freight volume, the freight rates

and the charter hire rates.

Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s other
income amounted to approximately RMB15.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 85.0% as compared with approximately
RMB101.2 million in the same period in 2008. Such decrease was
primarily attributable to the gain from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets of RMB97.1 million in 2008, whereas no disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets occurred in 2009.

Cost of inventories

Cost of inventories of the Group in 2009 amounted to RMB3,287.2
million, representing a decrease of 5.7% as compared with
RMB3,484.7 million in 2008. This was primarily due to the decrease

in turnover.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of inventories (continued)

The Group purchases coal from both overseas and PRC domestic
market. The following table sets forth information regarding the
Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and net sales during
2008 and 2009:

BA RS E R (42)

FERAK(E)

AEEB SR BEBERTSREX
®e TREINBEAEER _ZT)N\F

LR—_TZNFHEREERHEFHEL
BT 2 BHY -

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLFE

2009 2008
—EBhE —ETN\F

Origins of coal B R AR Sales volume Net sales  Sales volume Net sales
’000 tonnes RMB’000 '000 tonnes RMB’000

HE HEFHE HE SHEFRE

T AR%¥Tn Tg ARETFT

China H 2,238 1,035,486 5,451 3,554,248
Indonesia ENfE 1,772 839,056 303 180,253
Australia BN 1,270 680,322 65 45,320
Canada nex 722 454,879 - -
Vietnam fif=) 575 214,703 455 270,349
Others Hitb 248 136,957 - -
Total BEt 6,825 3,361,403 6,274 4,050,170

The Group keeps increasing the network of overseas suppliers to
ensure a supply of consistent quantity and quality of coal. Canada,
Colombia, Russia and South Africa are new supply sources in 2009.

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its
key overseas and PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed
business relationships with the majority of them over a period
of not less than 3 years. The Group has also been undergoing
upstream expansion through various initiatives, including acquisition
of companies holding coal mines in China and equity interest in an
Australian mining company holding several exploitation rights in
Australia. This enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality
coal.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to approximately RMB80.3
million, representing an increase of approximately 34.7% as
compared with approximately RMB59.6 million in the same period in
2008. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in staff cost.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses decreased by approximately 35.8% to
approximately RMB100.0 million during the year ended 31
December 2009 mainly because of the decrease in port service fees
resulted from increased purchase from coal traders instead of direct
procurement from coal mines. Port service fees was not borne by the
Group when the purchases were made from coal traders.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2009 amounted to RMB30.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB18.5 million or
38.1% from approximately RMB48.6 million in 2008. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in average interest rate during the

year.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense in 2009 was approximately
RMB98.1 million, representing an increase of approximately 51.9%
from approximately RMB64.6 million in 2008, which was mainly due
to the taxation on profit after tax of the PRC subsidiaries arising from
the structure contract arrangement as described on page 129 of the
Prospectus. The Group’s effective income tax rate was 16.3% in
2008 and 43.1% in 2009. The non-taxable nature of one-off gain on
disposal of available-for-sales financial assets in 2008 reduced the

effective income tax rate in 2008.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Profit attributable to equity shareholders decreased by
approximately 60.8% from approximately RMB330.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2008 to approximately RMB129.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2009 due to the decrease
in profitability of the coal trading and the shipping business as a
result of the economic slowdown and the one-off gain on disposal of
available-for-sales financial assets in 2008.

In addition, certain operating costs of the Group, such as selling
and marketing and administrative expenses, could not be reduced
correspondingly with the decline in the coal trading volume during
the first half of 2009.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group recorded an unaudited
loss for the four months ended 30 April 2009 in contrast to the
unaudited profit recorded for the same period in 2008. Since the
Group recorded net profit for the eight months ended 31 December
2009 along with improved economic performance in China as well
as overseas markets, the Group achieved a profit before income
tax of approximately RMB227.6 million representing a decrease of
about 23.7% or RMB70.6 million from approximately RMB298.2
million being profit before income tax and one-off gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets in 2008.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and
maintains a healthy financial condition. With the listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange in July 2009 raising net proceeds
of approximately HK$660 million, the Group continues to fund
its business operations and general working capital principally by
internally generated financial resources, bank borrowings and the
aforesaid net proceeds.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL

STRUCTURE (continued)

The Group’s net current assets as of 31 December 2009 were
approximately RMB570.0 million (Net current assets as of 31
December 2008: approximately RMB51.3 million). As of 31
December 2009, the cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB376.2 million (as of 31 December
2008: approximately RMB201.5 million). The liquidity was
significantly improved and the financial position was strengthened
upon the completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the

Prospectus) on 3 July 2009.

As of 31 December 2009, the total bank and other borrowings
of the Group were approximately RMB2,245.7 million (as of 31
December 2008: approximately RMB1,168.9 million), approximately
RMB2,013.8 million of which were repayable within one year and
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0.83% to 4.86% (2008:
1.75% to 6.77%) per annum. Non-current secured bank loans as
of 31 December 2009 carried variable interest rates based on (i)
the LIBOR plus 1% and (i) 10% discount on the per annum interest
rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China in respect of three-year
borrowings (31 December 2008: (i) the LIBOR plus 1% and (i) 5%
discount on the per annum interest rate quoted by the People’s Bank
of China in respect of long-term borrowings over 5 years).

As of 31 December 2009, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
save for amounts of approximately RMB equivalent 19.4 million and
RMB equivalent 147.5 million held in HK$ and US$, respectively,
were held in RMB. The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings
made in RMB, US$, HK$ were approximately RMB599.4 million,
RMB equivalent 1,551.0 million and RMB equivalent 95.3 million,

respectively.

The gearing ratio (calculated as interest-bearing borrowings
divided by total assets) of the Group as of 31 December 2009 was
approximately 54.0% (as of 31 December 2008: approximately

56.0%).
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGING

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in HK$, RMB and US$. Operating outgoings incurred by the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB
while overseas purchases are usually denominated in USD. These
subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. The Directors consider
that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is not
significant as RMB is relatively stable against other currencies, and
that hedging by means of derivative instruments is therefore not
necessary.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP AND GUARANTEE

As of 31 December 2009, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB2,003.3 million (as of 31 December
2008: approximately RMB1,468.7 million) in forms of property, plant
and equipment, inventories, trade and bill receivables and bank
deposits were pledged to banks for credit facilities granted to the
Group.

As of 31 December 2009, Mr. XU Jihua issued guarantees to banks
for granting banking facilities of an amount equivalent to RMB1,127
million to the Group. The Group is now in the process of discussing
with the banks to release the guarantees.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2009

In light of the anticipated investments of the Group, the Directors
consider that it would be more appropriate to deploy the financial
resources to further strengthen the capital position and business
development of the Group. On this basis and as set forth in the
Prospectus, the Directors have decided not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009. Hence, there will
not be any resolution for the final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2009 to be tabled at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “Annual General Meeting”). The
Directors are committed to the proposed dividend policy set forth
in the Prospectus and will consider the declaration and payment of
such dividend in accordance with such policy in the forthcoming
financial years.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares have been successfully listed on the Stock Exchange
since 3 July 2009. The net proceeds from the Global Offering (as
defined in the Prospectus) were approximately HK$660 million. The
Group will use the net proceeds to strengthen its competitiveness by
implementing the future plans as stated in its Prospectus.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2009, the Group employed 348 employees.
The Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to
motivate its staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In
addition to the basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to
those staff members with outstanding performance.

Members of the Group established in the PRC are also subject
to social insurance contribution plans organised by the PRC
government. In accordance with the relevant national and local
labour and social welfare laws and regulations, members of the
Group established in the PRC are required to pay on behalf of their
employees a monthly social insurance premium covering pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other
relevant insurance. Members of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund scheme, if
applicable, in accordance with the applicable Hong Kong laws and
regulations.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION (continued)

Moreover, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as defined in the
Prospectus) was adopted in June 2009 to retain staff members
who have made contribution to the success of the Group. As of 31
December 2009, options to subscribe for in aggregate 8,400,000
Shares were granted to an executive Director and 25 employees of
the Group. The Directors believe that the compensation packages
offered by the Group to its staff members are competitive in
comparison with market standards and practices.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

With the international economic condition getting back into
stabilisation and the continuous economic growth in China, the
Directors believe that the level of domestic production and domestic
consumption in China will increase steadily. These will stimulate
the demand for electricity and thermal coal as the principal raw
materials for power generation. The Directors are optimistic that the
coal trading business of the Group will improve and further advance
during 2010. Based on the current orders on hand and the latest
business trends, the Directors anticipate that the Group’s trading
volume of coal and iron ore in 2010 will significantly exceed that in
2009.

Since the listing of the Shares on 3 July 2009, the Group has further
strengthened various components of its integrated supply chain of
coal. Moreover, preparing for the anticipated economic recovery and
the increasing demand for coal products, the Group continues to
improve its business models with the following initiatives:—
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

Construction of the Zhuhai Terminal as a strategic integration of

existing coal supply chain

A substantial progress has been achieved since the foundation
laying of the project in late September 2009. A joint venture
agreement was signed in October 2009 with Ja/1b7E D £ B AR A
7] (Hebei Port Group Company Limited) (‘Hebei Port Group”) for
the establishment of a joint venture company for the construction
and operation of the Zhuhai Terminal. The joint venture company
will have a registered capital of RMB519 million of which the Group
will contribute 60% and Hebei Port Group will contribute 40%. The
Group will contribute RMB311.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$353.9 million) for the registered capital of the joint venture
company out of the net proceeds from the Global Offering (as
defined in the Prospectus). The total investment amount of the joint
venture company will be approximately RMB1,500 million and shall

be arranged by the joint venture company.

The Zhuhai Terminal is strategically located in the southeast region
of Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, China, thereby allowing the Group
to (i) take advantage of its proximity to customers located in the coal
consuming coastal cities of southern China; (i) react more quickly
to customers’ need; and (jii) lower transportation cost. The berthing
capacity of Zhuhai Terminal is 100,000 DWT (construction structure:
150,000 DWT) which enables it to accommodate Capesize and
Panamax vessels for coal transshipment. The Group will be able to
further strengthen its coal storage and blending capacities as Zhuhai
Terminal can serve as a site for blending and storage of coal. As
Zhuhai Terminal will have an annual thruput capacity of 20 million
tonnes which can also serve as a centre for coal exchange, it can
facilitate an advancement in the Group’s ability to further procure and

sell coal in the coal trading market.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 March 2010

for further details.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

Acquisition of equity interest in coal mining companies as a vertical
integration to ensure stable supply of coal

Ruifeng Coal

In August 2009, Datong Jinfa, a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an equity interest transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) with, amongst others, Shanxi Ruifeng Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Ruifeng”), which held a 87.88% equity
interest in Ruifeng Coal. Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement,
Shanxi Ruifeng agreed to sell its entire interest in Ruifeng Coal to
Datong Jinfa at a consideration of RMB130,000,000.

As the process for the transfer of equity interest involves approvals
from a number of government departments and authorities which
takes a considerable amount of time, the Group will obtain controls
of Ruifeng Coal by way of escrow agreement. As of 31 December
2009, the acquisition had not been completed.

The coal mine is currently undergoing a technical upgrade which
would result in the mine achieving an annual production capacity
of 900,000 tonnes. Production of coal is expected to commence
immediately after the completion of technical upgrade in around mid
2010.

Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal

In December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire
60% equity interest in Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal for an
aggregate consideration of RMB857.3 million. The Group intends
to arrange for bank borrowings to finance the payment of 65% of
the consideration, i.e. approximately RMB557.2 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$633.2 million), with the remaining 35% of
the consideration, i.e. approximately RMB300.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$341.0 million), to be funded by the Group'’s
internal financial resources. As at 31 December 2009, the required
closing matters in relation to the acquisition have not yet been
completed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

Acquisition of equity interest in coal mining companies as a vertical
integration to ensure stable supply of coal (continued)

Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal (continued)

Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal holds the coal mining rights on
various coal mines with a site area of approximately 29.1 square
kilometers. The coal mines are located at Dongsheng District of
Ordos, the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, the PRC and
are within 100 kilometers from the Group’s coal loading stations
in Baotou with easy access to railway and highway. According
to a study endorsed and approved by the Inner Mongolia Land
Resources Bureau and conducted in 2007, the coal reserve of the
coal mines that Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal has been granted
the mining rights amounts to approximately 158.76 million tonnes.
The mining licence held by Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal also
states that the relevant coal mines will have an annual coal output
capacity of not less than 900,000 tonnes. Ordos Bayin Mengke
Nayuan Coal has adopted the open cast method in coal mining in
accordance with the Approval in Relation to Fire-fighting Measures
Preliminary Design issued by the Administration of Coal Industry of
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region. The coal is thermal coal with
low sulphur content, low to medium ash content and high heat
content used in thermal power generation, industrial furnace, steam
locomotive, ships and as domestic fuels. The construction of the
underground mining tunnels of the coal mines has been completed.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 30 December
2009 for further details.

The Group is in the process of preparing the circular in relation
to this acquisition which will include, amongst other things, the
technical consultancy report, valuation report and accountants’
report. The circular is expected to be dispatched to the Shareholders
on or before 31 May 2010. The Group expects the acquisition will
be completed, and control of Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal
secured, upon obtaining approval from our shareholders.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)

Construction of two new Panamax vessels to strengthen existing
transportation capabilities

In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Group entered into two ship
building contracts for the construction of two 82,000 DWT Panamax
bulk carriers at a cost of US$35.2 million each. The vessels will be
delivered to the Group in the second quarter and the third quarter of
2011, respectively. Not less than 65% of the construction cost will
be financed by bank borrowing while the remainder will be funded by
internally generated financial resource.

The Group has been planning to modernize the age and model of
the Group’s vessels in order to improve operational efficiency, and
thus the construction of vessels is in line with such plan. Also, as the
Group’s trading volume continues to expand, increase in the number
of the Group’s own vessels and thus its transportation capacity can
enhance the Group’s control on its trading costs and reduce risk
faced by the Group due to any fluctuation in transportation costs.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 30 October
2009 and 15 December 2009, respectively for further details.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (continued)
Investment in Tiaro Coal as a long-term strategy

In October 2009, the Group subscribed for 7,400,000 shares in the
share capital of Tiaro Coal at the subscription price of A$0.18 per
share. In December 2009, the Group exercised an option to acquire
an additional 6,000,000 shares at a price of A$0.25 per share. The
investment in Tiaro Coal was classified as available-for-sale financial
assets as at 31 December 2009.

The Group and Tiaro Coal are collaborating in three ways:

a) development of Tiaro Coal’s coal interests to establish a
JORC (Joint Ore Reserves Committee) compliant resource of
high quality metallurgical coal (coking and PCI) enabling us to
participate in coal off take of future potential mine production;

b)  development of profitable bi-lateral coal trade; and
c) development of new coal exploration opportunities
independently and with third party coal mine owners aimed at

identifying new sources of coal for the Group.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 19 October
2009 for further details.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 (the “Financial Statements”).

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March
2008 as an exempted company with limited liability. It was registered
on 24 April 2008 with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
as a non-Hong Kong company under Part Xl of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32).

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing of the
Company’s shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange, the
Company became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 12 June 2009.

Details of the group reorganisation are set out in the section headed
“Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” on page 122 of the
Prospectus.

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from 3 July
2009 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business involving
purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending, shipping and
transportation of coal. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 18 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensvie income on page 62 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds (after deduction of related issuance costs) from
the Company’s initial public offering pursuant to which 287.5 million
Shares were issued including the exercise of the over-allotment
option at a price of HK$2.52 per Share amounted to approximately
HK$660 million. The net proceeds have been partially applied and
such application is consistent with the proposed usage of the net
proceeds disclosed in the Prospectus. The unused balance of the
net proceeds was deposited in short-term demand deposits at 31
December 2009.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the Financial Statements.

DONATION

Charitable and other donation made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB5,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the Financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as at 31
December 2009, share premium amounting to approximately
RMB495 million (2008: Nil) is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the four years ended
31 December 2009 and the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 is set out on page 10 of this
report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2009 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LIU Xiaomei

Mr. WENG Li

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. CHEN Wenjing

Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. WENG Li was appointed as an executive Director on 21 April
2009.

All of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed on 12
June 2009 with a term of service of 1 year commencing from 12 June
2009 and shall continue for a period of 1 year from and including
such date unless previously terminated in accordance with the terms
and conditions specified in the relevant letter of appointment dated
12 June 2009 entered into between the independent non-executive
director and the Company.

BEBERE

ARRZAEBERAR(TERAME]) K
SRS (BIARREMKLAAER)
AU EARELEERE G RE
RAREZLHIMRBERREZEER

Bt
BBHME

AREEHE-_TETZNF+-_A=+—H
HHEFESF 2 E£ERERAERR
—EEXRF BT F - ZEBEENEF
—EENFZEENBBRIHNARE
108 o

=

—ETNFFEEAREAE  ARQF
FHNMOT

WITES :
REELEE(EZE)
ERIRL L (7T AEEE)
Ell=T s

§ MEHE

BFBITES
BRI E L+
=EBEE
BHIRELE

PURER_ZTENFOA-_+—HE
RERHITES -

IBRFAITESER T NFNA
THEZE BZZEZAFRATZ
B EH—F aZARERE%AE)
ES—F ERBEBIFNTEER
ARBR-ZETZNFANA+T BRI Z
A & (T RK AR TE 2 15 AR S R 1 10 7% B A
ARIEERAN

Annual Report 2009 —ZEZ N F &3]



Directors’ Report EE 2%

DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article
83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

Mr. XU Jihua will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles and Ms. WANG Jianfei
and Ms. LIU Xiaomei will retire by rotation in accordance with Article
84 of the Articles. All retiring Directors, being eligible, would offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts, the details of which are set forth
in the paragraphs under “Connected Transactions” in this report,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTOR AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on page 12 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which each
of them had taken or deemed to have taken under the provisions of
the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

1. Interests in the Company

EERBSTRAERRKRS - HEAKRSD
REZHP2EERAR(E)

1. RARBZ S

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

of the Company (%)
Number of shares HAQRTEBITRAE
BB E 2B E 7L (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
EENS MY 78 HAE #7h KA
Mr. XU Jihua* Corporate 593,000,000 (Note 1) Nil 57.2 Nil
REEL L N 593,000,000 (HizE1) Eas 57.2 i
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 (Note 2) Nil 4.8 Nil
FRIFZ L EmlEAA 50,000,000 (Fff3E2) i 4.8 =
Mr. WENG Li Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 (Note 2) Nil 0.3 Nil
S kE BEmEAA 3,000,000 (Fff5E2) i 0.3 i
Ms. LIU Xiaomei Beneficial Owner 600,000(Note 3) Nil 0.1 Nil
Gl 2 ko EnEAA 600,000 (Ffi7E 3) Eis 0.1 =
Notes: KfzE -
1. The Shares are held directly by Fortune Pearl International 1, % % B {9 HFortune Pearl

Limited (“Fortune Pearl”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. XU
Jihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. XU Jihua is deemed to have
interests in the 593,000,000 Shares.

2. The beneficial interest is held under the trust scheme (the
“Trust Scheme”) adopted by Fortune Pearl on 13 June
2009.

3. The beneficial interest is in the form of options granted

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 12 June 2009.

Mr. XU Jihua, being a Director, is also acting as the
Chairman of the Board of Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

2. Interests in associated corporations
Name of
Name of associated
Director corporations Capacity
EENA B EE 2B 54
Mr. XU Jihua Fortune Pearl Beneficial owner
BEELEE Fortune Pearl BEnEA A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them had taken or
deemed to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or
(b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As of 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:—
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

TERRRERDAREPZEBERAXR
(&

nE

RNATEREEO010BTT L &R

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital
of the Company (%)

Number of shares EARQATC BITRA
RHE B Z A E 2 E (%)

Long Short Long Short

Name of shareholder positions positions positions positions

REREH #E RE HE KB

Fortune Pearl (Note 1) 593,000,000 Nil 57.2 Nil

Fortune Pearl (Bf{zE1) 593,000,000 it 57.2 i

Equity Trust (HK) Limited (Note 2) 157,000,000 Nil 15.1 Nil

18 EFERE(BE)BR AT (KEE2) 157,000,000 i 15.1 i

Mr. XU Da (Note 3) 100,000,000 Nil 9.6 Nil

mELE (FiEE3) 100,000,000 i 9.6 i
Notes: MIEE -

1. Fortune Pearl is wholly-owned by Mr. XU Jihua.

2. Equity Trust (HK) Limited is the trustee of the Trust Scheme
holding on trust 157,000,000 Shares for the benefit of the
participants of the Trust Scheme, namely Ms. WANG Jianfei, Mr.
XU Da, Mr. WENG Li, Mr. LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha.

3. Mr. XU Da is a participant of the Trust Scheme entitled to
100,000,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme detailed in note 24 to the Financial Statements, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2009 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors (save for Ms. LIU Xiaomei who
had options to subscribe for 600,000 Shares granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme), their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such rights.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has adopted
a performance-based rewarding system to motivate its employees
and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to
the basic salaries, year-end bonuses will be offered to those staff
members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual experience, performance
and responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by
companies of comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to
the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases HEERE

— the largest supplier — R AHLER

— five largest suppliers in aggregate —hARHEEmEET
Sales SHEE

— the largest customer —BAEP

— five largest customers in aggregate —hREFER

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions that are
exempted under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2009:-

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, each member
of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus), and their
respective equity interest holders (which include Mr. XU Jihua, an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU
Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being controlling shareholders of
the Company) entered into the Structure Contracts (as defined in the
Prospectus) for a term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics
agreed to pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the
China Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation of
the coal operation business and the inland shipping transportation
business of the China Qinfa Group, and all economic benefits and
risks arising from the business of China Qinfa Group are transferred
to Qinfa Logistics. Further details of the Structure Contracts are
set forth in the section headed “Reorganisation and the Structure
Contracts” in the Prospectus.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules to the Company for all
transactions under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance
with the applicable announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditors have carried out agreed-upon procedures
annually on the transactions carried out pursuant to the Structure
Contracts and have provided a letter to the Board confirming that,
based on the procedures performed, the relevant transactions
pursuant to the Structure Contracts have received the required
approval and were entered into in accordance with the terms of
the Structure Contracts. It is confirmed that no dividends or other
distributions have been made by any member of China Qinfa Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions were entered
into: () in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (i) in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements governing
such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (iii)
either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than those available to or from independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed that
(i) the transactions carried out during 2009 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts
and have been operated so that all revenue generated by China
Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa Logistics; (i) no dividends or
other distributions have been made by any member of China Qinfa
Group to its equity interest holders; and (i) any new contracts or
renewed contracts have been entered into on the same terms as the
existing Structure Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as
the Group is concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a
whole.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The principal terms of the

two schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on
12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme whereby one executive Director and 25 employees of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for Shares.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise
the contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option Scheme,

except that:

(i) the exercise price per share is HK$2.52; and

(i) the total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is

8,400,000 Shares.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right to do so
has been terminated upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock

Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of

BRETE(E)
BRARBERERETE(F)

RARERH  REFRXRMEEAE
BT 8l R ARTTRME X B R E

the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(@) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the
first anniversary of the Listing Date;

(b)  30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the
second anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(c) 40% of the total number of the options can be exercised
from the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing Date.

&%

(@)

(b)

)

this report: —EIEHYIAT -
Approximate
Number of options Outstanding  percentage
BREZE as at of issued
31 December share capital
Granted at Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2009 of the
Name 12 June 2009 during during during R=ZZAFE  Company
R=BENF  theperiod theperiod the period +=H Y NS
~A+=AH RER RER RER =1+—-H BEIREH
®E BT K4 P e HATE BHBEIH
%
Director E=
LIU Xiaomei il 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.06
Employees E& 7,800,000 - (200,000) - 7,600,000 0.73
8,400,000 - (200,000) - 8,200,000 0.79
Notes: MisE -
Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 1. FHRER R A ABREREBRKRESTE M
has a vesting period of one to three years commencing from EHWERESBEHAEA—Z2=F(FH
3 July 2009, being the listing date of the Shares on the Stock DR Fm BT AF+ A
Exchange. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to —HBF) c ARRIWEEERMEER
repurchase or settle the option in cash. - IR BRI (BT -
All options under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme were granted on 12 2. BRXARZEGEREAZETNOME
June 2009 at an exercise price of HK$2.52 per Share. BIREA-—EZNE A+ -RIREKR
2.52 B TTHATIRER M -
Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted under 3. FEBER RN AFREREIRET 28

TEEENZARA A -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was determined using the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”.

The significant inputs into the model were:

° risk-free rate of return — 3.029% per annum;

° forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and

° forecast dividend yield — 1.50% per annum.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”,
the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e.
12 June 2009) was HK$7,649,893.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the fair
value of options and is a common choice among various option
pricing models for assessing the fair value of options. The value of
the options depends on the valuation arrived at based on certain
subjective assumptions on variables. Any changes in the variables
used may cause a substantial effect on the assessment of the fair
value of the options.

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, our Company and to enable
our Company and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
an employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit
shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business dayj; (i) the average of the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant and (i) the
nominal value of a Share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption, i.e.
12 June 2009. No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2009 amounted to approximately RMB2,245.7 million
(2008: RMB1,168.9 million). Particulars of the bank loans and other
borrowings are set out in note 23 to the Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float with at least 25% of the Shares held
by the public as required by the Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to compete
(either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2009 and up to the date of this
report, save for Mr. XU Jihua’s legal ownership in the equity interest
in members of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus).

BRETE(E)
ARt El(E)

B A AT AR 5 B AR T B4R 1 A0 e B AR
EmME BROMNRBEEATI =FF
ZERmE (\REHEREZER(EREHE
BB R E B RERATR2 RGO K
TE: (\RNEEREBREZEE 2T RE
RSBEBRAETARERAFTROB
BFHWRTE K (i) RO EE -

BREAZARAER(BAIZZETAFR
ATZR)E10FHEA - ErRTAAR
ARBRRARE LXMEFRFRIL - F
A ARARBERBBREFIREE
Pt -

RITERREMEER

AEEBR-_ZTEENF+_A=+—8H
ZIBITERRAMEELAEHARE
2,245 700,000 C( —ZEEN\F: AR
1,168,900,0007T) ° HRITER R HME R
REMEEFIESEHN I EWMERMFE23 -

BRHARERE

RIBEARBABZARENELEES
Pl MAFRTFEALY - NRAMER
RANRBRHERE  BARALTHAR
225% 2 Bitn - WA EMRRIZIRE o

ESNREER S

BMEEEHE_ZTNF+_A=1+—
BIEFEEARE B REMNREARFE
BAESREREUN SV AN 2
R HEF(EEEIER)NEBTRHER
& ERETERENTEREEEKE
RANBREAEEMBE(EERERE
F2)BRIN o

Annual Report 2009 —ZEZ N F &3] _



Directors’ Report EE 2%

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
(continued)

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus) and the executive Directors (collectively,
the “Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 12 June 2009 in favor of the Company. The Convenantors
have provided the Group with written confirmations that they and
their associates (other than members of the Group) have fully
complied with the deed of non-competition throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed of
non-competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of
refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Prospectus) on their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Covenantors and
their respective associates did not direct any Business Opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the
independent non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on
the decision made in relation to Business Opportunity.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in this report have been audited by KPMG
who will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Since the listing of the Shares on 3 July 2009 until 31 December
2009, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,
Xu Jihua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise accountability
and transparency and are adopted in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Group has complied with the applicable code provisions set
out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to
oversee all major matters of the Company, including the formulation
and approval of the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
internal control and risk management systems, monitoring
its operating and financial performance, and evaluating the
performance of the senior management. The Directors, individually
and collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group
and the company secretary. Management information is provided
to enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when
requested. The company secretary provides secretarial support to
the Board and ensures adherence to Board procedures and the
relevant rules and regulations which are applicable to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities and Delegation (continued)

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to these officers for the implementation of Board
decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated functions
and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the
aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, of whom four
are executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LIU Xiaomei

Mr. WENG Li

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. CHEN Wenjing

Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

All four executive Directors are responsible for implementating the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including,
but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all
major and material matters of the Group. The Company maintains
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board held five
meetings on 12 June 2009, 28 August 2009, 31 October 2009,
15 December 2009 and 30 December 2009, and all Directors had
attended these meetings except that Dr. CHEN Wenjing was absent
from all the meetings.

The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has
appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise
to the Company. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out on page 14 of this Annual Report.
Each of the independent non-executive Director has confirmed in
writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All the appointments of independent non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. The Directors are of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors and
auditors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Jihua is the Chairman and an executive Director, responsible
for providing advice for the overall management and strategic
development and overseeing the operation of the Board. The
other executive Director Ms. WANG Jianfei acts as the Group’s
chief executive officer who is responsible for the Group’s overall
management, corporate development, strategic planning and the
supervision of day-to-day operation. The segregation of duties and
responsibilities between the Chairman and the chief executive officer
aims to ensure a balance of power and authority.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was established by the Board on 12 June
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management of the Group. The members of the remuneration
committee of the Board are Ms. WANG Jianfei, Dr. CHEN Wenjing
and Mr. HUANG Guosheng. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, no meeting was held by
the remuneration committee as matters such as approval of the
terms of executive Director’s service contracts and review of the
remuneration policies of the Group have been performed in the
Board meeting held on 12 June 2009 before the listing of the Shares

on the Stock Exchange in July 2009.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was established by the Board on 12 June
2009 with written terms of reference. The primary duties of the
nomination committee of the Board are to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members of the nomination
committee of the Board are Ms. WANG Jianfei, Dr. CHEN Wenjing
and Mr. HUANG Guosheng. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the
chairperson of the nomination committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, no meeting was held by
the nomination committee as matters such as determination of the
structure, size and composition of the Board, selection of qualified
and suitable persons as Directors and appointments of independent
non-executive Directors, have been performed in the Board meeting
held on 12 June 2009 before the listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange in July 2009.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 12 June 2009, and each of the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company on 12 June 2009 for a term of one year.
Such term is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded
of their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 3 July 2009
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009 and up to the date of
this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established by the Board on 12 June 2009
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review and approve the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system. The
audit committee had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.
As at the date of this report, the audit committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Dr.
CHEN Wenijing and Mr. HUANG Guosheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the
chairperson of the audit committee of the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the audit committee
held one meeting and all the members had attended the meeting
except Dr. CHEN Wenjing. During the meeting, the audit committee
had reviewed and recommended the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2009 to the Board for approval. The audit committee also reviewed
the accounting issues raised by the independent auditor of the
Company and their fees and concluded with satisfaction with respect
to the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of the
Board and its senior management.

The Group has adopted certain internal control policies to manage
and minimize financial and other risks, to ensure timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and to monitor
compliance with laws by the senior management of the Group in the
performance of their duties.

The Group has also established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance with laws
by the Group’s senior management and in its daily operations, and
of carrying out investigations for suspected breaches of law. The
Company convened meetings with the audit committee periodically
to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.
During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and the Directors are of the view
that the existing system of internal control is effective and adequate
to the Group.

REVIEW ON THE GROUP’S EXPOSURE ON COAL
PRICE FLUCTUATIONS AND ITS RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES

We engaged one of the leading international accounting firms to
perform an annual review of the Group’s written risk management
procedures over the exposure on coal price fluctuations and
inventory management. The review covered, and recommendations
have been given on, the following areas:

° preparation and renewal of coal price risk management
procedure flow;

° management on price of purchase orders and sale orders;

o implementation, supervision and management of sales
contracts;
° inventory management;

o hedging arrangement for oversea coal sales and purchases.

R EB 22 I

AEBEREHOIREEETEME R
ERERENEN -

AEBCERIT & T REBE I BER K
EEMK/IMEM B MEmER - ARER
K ERMREMBETHER L&
BAKESREEBRETREBIET
SPARTER ©

AEBEEZEGZTERY TEREZE
T EEFMABEEARESHEE
ERNEAREEED AT BEE
KB RE R T RRARSE - NA7R]H
ERRECeTHARER UNEAS
Bo2ERAREEREE -FAR EF
SEEHMASEANENRREZAN
- BEERRRE 2 NEREEERRY
AEBEMEBHERERH -

T8

HESERRARERKRERERRE
HRAETERN

AEBERE—RERALHSHEE
R HAKEARRKER RS NF
EERENERRARERETFETFESR

Bl - 2 EHMCBE TN EBEZ TS
EEHER

o FREREREIRIZFHIEMER ;

o  RBTEEMHEREERERE

o HEARMWIT BHBENERE:

. GEEE

o BIMNERIHENRRBROEINEIRE o

Annual Report 2009 —ZEZ N F &3]



Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8 &

REVIEW ON THE GROUP’S EXPOSURE ON COAL
PRICE FLUCTUATIONS AND ITS RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES (continued)

The Board will ensure that the recommended levels will be adhered
to and the risk control policies will be complied with, and significant
breach incidents will be escalated to the attention of the Board.
In addition, the Board will take necessary measures to rectify the
deficiency identified in the report prepared by the accounting firm.

The Board will continue to engage a leading international accounting
firm to perform annual review until the coal operation business has
less than 50% contribution to the Group’s revenue.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to oversee
the preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and
of results and cash flow for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgments and estimates, and have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also
warrant that the Group’s financial statements will be published in a
timely manner.

The statement of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 60 of
this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the remuneration to the
Group’s external auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group is set forth below:

Audit services ZE RS
Non-audit services IERZEBR TS
Total &5t

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concerned parties in an active and timely manner. Also, the
Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have equal access
to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. Since the listing of the Company
in July 2009, the executive Directors and the chief financial officer
of the Company held regular briefings and results presentation,
attended investor forums and responded to investors’ call-in
enquiries, participated in interviews with institutional investors and
financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries to
keep them abreast of the Company’s business and development as
well as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and collects the
feedback from them, in the interests of developing an interactive and
mutually beneficial relationship with the Company‘s investors.

All the financial information and other disclosures, including
interim result, final result, announcement, circular and other notice
of the Company are available on the Company’s website at
www.qginfagroup.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkex.com.hk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 62 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTZNF+_A=1+—HILFE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Results from operating activities

Finance income
Finance costs

Net finance costs

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries

Net change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustment)

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company

Profit for the year

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends declared to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

26(e).

Note
FaE

L 5
SHE A
EA

HABYA 6
DAY
THRFAX
HAbkA

RERERE

BATSIA
FATERRA

PAIE AR A< 7(@)
BR P 1555 A&

PRSHRA 8
FREF

HipZEBA
BEGIN B AR HRE
ZIERERR

At A
AREEHFE
FRRARERA

(B REEHHRAE)

12(b)

12(a)
FRAZHEKRAHLLE
PEAR R F :

ARAEEmFAA
FREF

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZE#&EEAR QT

2009 2008
—gTAE —TEN\F
RMB'000  RMB’000
ARET ARETT
3,926,993 4,192,484
(3,501,338)  (3,632,568)

425,655 559,916
15,195 101,203
(100,025)  (155,850)
(80,267) (59,579)
(2,937) (1,814)
257,621 443,876
13,234 15,733

(43,291) (64,310)

(30,057) (48,577)

227,564 395,299
(98,061) (64,609)
129,503 330,690

(46) (24,666)

12,918 (86,2095)

12,872 (110,871)

142,375 219,819

129,503 330,690

129,503 330,690

FE70E 168 B MK s A kR A — 2B
Do BAANR AIRER A ARE (R A F 5 A
BEIRAE S FIBEEAHIE26(6) °



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BEZTAF+_A=+—HIFE

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (RMB)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB)

FEAE 2 E AR

AR A
FAZEBARE

BREF
SREARN (ARET)

sh#ggas (ARET)

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.

Note
FaE

13(a)
13(b)

2009 2008
—BBNE —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE ARETR

142,375 219,819

142,375 219,819

0.15 0.44

0.15 N/A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

At 31 December 2009
R_TTAF+=-_A=1+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Lease prepayments

Other investments

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings

Net assets

FRBEE

VE R G
HETRMNTKIA
Hip &
EIETRE E

RBEE

&

FEUE 5 Bk 5K S EL At FE MR IR
EHEMEFER
RelBReEHEY

RBRE
ERREE
FETE 5 8RN E M 5RIR
BIEATEIA

RBEEFHE
EERERABAE

FRBAR
EREEE

BEFRE

Note
i

14
15
16
17

19
20
21

23

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial statements.
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2009 2008
—gBhE —FEN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
996,231 927,683
6,053 6,193
30,390 -
6,561 11,411
1,039,235 945,287
358,124 77,713
1,349,832 375,558
1,037,328 485,425
376,187 201,499
3,121,471 1,140,195
(2,013,813) (907,266)
(370,104) (123,995)
(167,578) (57,658)
(2,551,495) (1,088,919)
569,976 51,276
1,609,211 996,563
(231,924) (261,608)
1,377,287 734,955
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2009
RZZTNF+=—A=+—H

Note 2009 2008
Bt —EEhF 2T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
Capital and reserves BAR&HE
Share capital &N 26(b) 91,474 =
Reserves i 26(c) 1,285,813 734,955
Total equity attributable to RATERIEE AL
equity shareholders ERBEE
of the Company 1,377,287 734,955
Total equity ERBE 1,377,287 734,955

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China RZE—ZTF=AZ T HEHRRHFZESE

Qinfa Group Limited on 26 March 2010. BHERARIESSHERITERET
Director Director
-2 EZE
WANG Jianfei XU Jihua
T I ®rEE

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial FE70E 168 E HI MR AR A TE TR R A — 5P
statements. 2y
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Statement of Financial Position

B IS AR AR

At 31 December 2009
R_TTAF+=-_A=1+—H

Note 2009 2008
MI5E —EETNEF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHE A RIMIRE 18 658,807 =
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables JEWE SR R H A EWGIE 20 800,599 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 22 1,324 -
801,923 -
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables ENESRAREMENFKIE 25 (219,528) =
Net current assets REEETFHE 582,395 =
Net assets BEEFRE 1,241,202 =
Capital and reserves BAR &
Share capital &N 26(b) 91,474 -
Reserves (e 26(c) 1,149,728 =
Total equity R 1,241,202 -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China RZEBE-—FF=A -+ \BETHREEE

Qinfa Group Limited on 26 March 2010. EERAREEGHERIREET o
Director Director
EZE EE
WANG Jianfei XU Jihua
F B ®rEHE

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial FE70E 168 H MM A IS TR R M — 5P

statements. PN

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A b 3L 4
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_TTNFH_A=+ HILEE

Note
it
At1January 2008 H=%2)\F-F-E
Total comprehensive A2
income for the year A%
Proftfortheyear  EREF
Other comprehensive E2ERA
income
Foreign currency EaEEE
tranglation difference
Disposal of avalable- ~ HETR L ECREE
for-sale financial
assels
Total other Et2ENALE
comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive ~ 2ERALHE
income
Transactions with ~ EE#HEAZRS
equity shareholders, RERERTIR
recorded directly
in equity
Capital injection HE
Avdsing on the ReEfmEE
Reorganisation
Appropriation to LIy
EServes 26(c)(iv)
Dividends declaredto  BEFERREA
equity shareholders RS, 26(e))
Total transactions ~ SEBHEA
with equty LR5EE
shareholders
At 31 December RIEENE
2008 t-A=t-A

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial

statements.

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANIREREARG

Share-based

compensation

reserve

Share Capital Share Merger Fairvalue  Exchange UL Retained
capital reserve premium reserve Reserves reserve reserve bty earnings Total
s BAiE RiEE G 1] i DAERE EXR HeRf REER &t
26(c)l) 26(c)ii

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR%TR
- 127,181 - - 112,274 86,200 (28,148) - 337,616 635,128
- - - - - - - - 330,690 330,690
- - - - - - (24,666) - - (24,666)
- - - - - (86,205) - - - (86,205)
- - - - - (86,205) (24,666) - - (110,871)
- - - - - 86,205) (24,666) - 330,690 219819
- 349 - - - - - - - 349
- (31,499) - 31499 - - - - - -
- - - - 185,004 - - - (185,004) -
- - - - - - - - (120,341) (120,341)
- (31,150) - 31499 185,004 - - - (305,345) (119,992)
- 96,031 - 31499 297,218 - (52,814 - 362,961 734,955

F£70E 168 E M B AR MK — B

7_7\0

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BHEZTZAF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAIRERE ARG
Share-based
compensation
reserve
Share Capital Share Merger Fairvalue  Exchange HRGE Retained
capital reserve premium reserve Reserves reserve reserve bty earnings Total
s ARG Rt i1 i DAERE EX@R HefE REER #it
Note 26(c)i)
i

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARMTT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR AR%TR

At1January2009  H=FEnE-A-B - 96,031 - 31,499 297,278 - (652,814) - 362,961 734,955
Total comprehensive £R2AUAEE

income for the year
Proftfortheyear — FiH = - - - - - - - 129503 129,508
Other comprehensive  Ef2ERA

income
Foreign currency NERERE

tranglation difference - - - - - - (46) - - (46)
Netchangeinfar  FIREESBEER

viueof avalable-  AAEEHTE

for-sale

financial assets - - - - - 12,918 - - - 12918
Total other AtzEhALE

comprehensive

income - - - - - 12918 (46) - - 12,872

Total comprehensive ~ 2ERALHE
income - - - - - 12918 (46) - 129,503 142,375

Transactions with ~ EEREEAZRE
equity shareholders, AEXERTIER

recorded directly

in equity
Adsing on the ReEfmEE

Reorganisation 88 96,031) - 95,943 = = o o - -
Capialisationissue A7 (LT 26(o)i 66,039 - (66,039) - - - - = = =
lssuance of shares by EBENAH

Initial Public Offering ~ #&%7kf7 26(0)(v) 2,042 - 533,429 - - - - - - 505,471
lssuance of shares  STARRLERE

under the HERE

over-allotment Rl

option related to

the placement 26(0)v) 3,306 - 79,987 - - - - - - 83,092
Share issing REARR

XDENSes - - (62,744) - - - - - - (62,744)
Aopropriation to AR

1EServes 26(c)(iv) - - - - 9416 - - - (9.416) -
Equity-settled IEREETN

share-based RPARERR

payments 26(c)(vi - - - - - - - 2,090 - 2,00
Diidends dedared ~ FAEERRIEN

and paid during BaFEA

the year k& 26)) - - - - - = = = (88,152) (88,152)
Totd transactions ~ SEBHAA

with equty IR5HEE

shareholders 91,474 (96,031) 494,633 95,943 9416 = = 2,090 (97,568) 499,957
At31 December  W-EEAF

2009 +ZA=1-A 91,474 - 494,633 127,442 306,694 12918 (52,860) 2,090 394,896 1,377,287
The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial FET70Z= 168 E AT A AR B 75 = A — 2B
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llv-\éiﬁﬁiﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZZNF+_A=1+—HILFE

Note 2009 2008
PI5E —EEhEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Operating activities KeEEE
Cash (used in)/generated wEEB) (FTA)
from operations FriSiHe 22(b) (412,466) 738,170
Interest paid EATHLE (49,753) (64,678)
Tax paid: B
- PRC Income Tax refund/(paid) — B ATSH
BiREL(E1) 8(c) 16,709 (121,513)
Net cash (used in)/generated &KeEEmE (FTA), B
from operating activities HEHEE (445,510) 551,979
Investing activities RETH
Interest received B UHLE 11,049 8,282
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME « = KM&iE
plant and equipment FTiS 5008 4,906 654
Proceeds from sale of investments &R E TS EIA - 110,885
Acquisition of property, B -« B K%
plant and equipment (197,749) (456,703)
Acquisition of other investments WiE b1 & (8,278) =
Prepayment for investments ETA K (169,320) =
Net cash used in investing RETEFTARESEE
activities (359,392) (336,882)
Financing activities Eﬂ’.ﬁ?ﬁ B
Proceeds from issue of share capital, 2E1TIRANFTSREIA
net of issuing expenses R BT 586,019 =
Capital injection EE - 349
Proceeds from loans and borrowings &3 & & & Fr{S kI8 4,518,745 2,748,544
Repayment of loans and borrowings B &R REE (3,441,533) (2,508,876)
Change in pledged deposits BIEBEFERNED) (551,903) (339,684)
Dividends paid BAKRE (133,856) -
Net cash generated from/ BMEEEAE(FTA)
(used in) financing activities REFHE 977,472 (99,667)
Net increase in cash and HERBELEEY
cash equivalents BN EE 172,570 115,430
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HAzZHER
at 1 January HEZEY 22(a) 201,499 85,060
Effect of foreign exchange ExEENTE
rate changes 2,118 1,009
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—HzE%
at 31 December REESEEY 22(a) 376,187 201,499

The notes on pages 70 to 168 form part of these financial F70E 168 B HI MR AR TS TR R A — BT
statements. 5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

1.1

General information and the basis of presentation

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) which was completed on 12 June
2009 to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation
for the public offering (as defined in the prospectus of
the Company dated 19 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”))
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company
of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details
of the Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus. The
Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange since 3 July 2009.

Since all entities which took part in the Reorganisation
were under common control of a group of ultimate equity
shareholders, the Group is regarded as a continuing
entity resulting from the reorganisation of entities under
common control. These financial statements have been
prepared on the basis that the current group structure
had been in existence at the beginning of the earliest year
presented. Accordingly, the consolidated results of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009
include the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
with effect from 1 January 2008 or, if later, since their
respective dates of incorporation as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the
two years presented. The consolidated statements of
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2009 have been prepared as if the
current group structure had been in existence as at the
respective dates. All material intra-group transactions
and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS”)
and related Interpretations, promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is rounded to the nearest
thousand. They have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except that the available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value.

DRAERREREE(F)

1.2 REEE

(@)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other resources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the

application of IFRSs that have significant effect

on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are described as follows:

)

Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
based on management’s regular review
of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management
when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual
customer. Any increase or decrease in the
impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts would affect the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in
future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual values. The
management periodically reviews changes
in technology and industry conditions,
asset retirement activity and residual values
to determine adjustments to estimated
remaining useful lives and depreciation
rates. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could
result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation expenses in future
periods.

RAERRRUEE (F)

1.2 IREBVEXE(E)

(c)

P Rz (b5t R I R (42)

B B A 5
AR PRI RO 2B - 0
YAHBRREEALE
K BRI 31 05
BRI -

0)

(i)

FEWE 5 Bk S BoAth
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FEWE 5 Rk S HoAth
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TIREEE BRI
2 K FF A AT e ]
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{EH AT R B - &
2 R RHA S E R
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R EH R EH
B - RIEFRREREE
EVEIER &R
KREFrFA 2
AFK °

e

R&at R fhEtiRER -
M - BB N R EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
distributing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a
result of competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles or other changes in
market condition. Management will reassess
the estimations at each reporting date.

Recognition of income taxes and deferred
tax assets

Determining income tax provision involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The management
carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically
to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

V)

Recognition of income taxes and deferred
tax assets (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised in
respect of temporary deductible differences.
As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair values of available-for-sale financial
assets are measured using quoted prices
in active markets. If information on current
or recent market prices of available-for-
sale financial assets is not available, the fair
values of available-for-sale financial assets
are determined using valuation techniques.

RAERRRUEE (F)

1.2 WEEEE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operation policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(g)).

Foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented
in RMB (the “presentation currency”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)  Foreign currency (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve.

2 EXEHBEE)

(b) HNE(E)

(i)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and
receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated. All other financial assets are recognised
initially on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows on the financial asset
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial assets: loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(i

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
balances and call deposits with original maturities
of three months or less.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale and that are not classified in
any of other categories. The Group’s investments
in equity securities are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than impairment losses (see
Note 2(g)) and foreign currency differences (see
Note 2(b)) on available-for-sale equity securities,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and presented within equity in the fair value
reserve. When an investment is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive
income is transferred to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)  Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on
the trade date at which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial liabilities: loans and borrowings and trade
and other payables.

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any
tax effects.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of buildings, vessels, plant and equipment
and other properties are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(g)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs (see Note 2(0)). Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ERARBTRE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsequent costs (continued)

Cost incurred in replacing or renewing the
separate assets in vessels (dry-docking costs)
are capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated period until the next dry-
docking.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable
amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substitute for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment, since this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

No depreciation is provided for assets under
construction until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and available for intended
use. Assets under construction are transferred
to relevant categories of property, plant and
equipment upon the completion of their respective
construction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iii) Depreciation (continued)

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-20 years

Machinery 4-20 years

Electronic and other 3-10 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Vessels 10-15 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) Disposal

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and are recognised net within other income in
profit or loss.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights
paid to the PRC’s governmental authorities. Lease
prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets

(i) Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through
profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@ Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (including receivables)
(continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired can include default or delinquency by
a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active
market for a security.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for
receivables at both a specific asset and collective
level. All individually significant receivables are
assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant receivables found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yet
identified. Receivables that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together receivables with similar risk
characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses
historical trends of the probability of default, timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management’s judgement as to
whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (including receivables)
(continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit
or loss and reflected in an allowance account
against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset
continues to be recognised through the unwinding
of the discount. When a subsequent event causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
securities are recognised by transferring the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
other comprehensive income, and presented in
the fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss.
The cumulative loss that is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition cost,
net of any principal repayment and amortisation,
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss. Changes in
impairment provisions attributable to time value are
reflected as a component of interest income.

Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of
an impaired available-for-sale equity security is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@9 Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit, or CGU”).

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate
separate cash inflows. If there is an indication
that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period,
or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Obligation for contribution to local government
defined contribution retirement scheme pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h)  Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course
of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net
of returns, trade discounts, volume rebates
and value added tax. Revenue is recognised
when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the
form of an executed sales agreement, that the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable
that discounts will be granted and the amount
can be measured reliably, then the discount is
recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales
are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ER AR BTEE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Revenue (continued)
(i) Income from charter hire

Income from time charter, which is of operating
lease in nature, is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised on
a percentage-of-completion basis, which is
determined on the time proportion method of each
individual voyage.

(i) Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially as
deferred income at fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and the Group will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are recognised.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

(k)  Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as
an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term
of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprises interest income and foreign
currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest
method.

Finance costs comprise interest expenses on
borrowings, bank charges and foreign currency losses.
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss or
capitalised using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Income
tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity in which
case the relevant amounts are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ER AR BTEE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax expense (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Income tax expense (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously, or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity, or

= different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ER AR BTEE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ER AR BTEE

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

("

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties

are considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

The party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

The Group and the party are subject to common
control;

The party is an associate of the Group or a jointly
controlled entity in which the Group is a venturer;

The party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

The party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

The party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued one new IFRS, a number of amendments
to IFRSs and new Interpretations that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

° IFRS 8, Operating segments

o IAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements

o Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about financial
instruments

o Improvements to IFRSs (2008)

° IAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

The amendments to IAS 23 and Improvements to IFRSs
(2008) had no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the amendments and interpretations were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.
The impact of the remainder of these developments on
these financial statements is as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ER AR BTEE

3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

As at 1 January 2009 the Group determines and
presents operating segments based on the information
that internally is provided to the Chief Executive Officer
(the “CEQ”), who is the Group’s chief operating decision
maker. This change in accounting policy is due to the
adoption of IFRS 8 Operating segments. Previously
operating segments were determined and presented
in accordance with IAS 14 Segment Reporting. The
new accounting policy in respect of segment operating
disclosures is presented as follows.

Comparative segment information has been re-
presented in conformity with the transitional
requirements of IFRS 8. Since the change in accounting
policy only impacts presentation and disclosure aspects,
there is no impact on earnings per share.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that related to transactions with any of the
Group’s other components. An operating segment’s
operating results are reviewed regularly by the CEO to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office
expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred
during the period to acquire property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Corresponding amounts have been provided on a basis
consistent with the revised segment information. In
making the disclosure in respect of reliance on major
customers (see Note 5) the Group has early adopted
the amendment to paragraph 34 of IFRS 8, such that it
applies judgement in determining whether a government
(including government agencies and similar bodies
whether local, national or international) and entities
known to the Group to be under the control of that
government are considered to be a single customer.

The Group applies revised IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements (2007), which became effective
as at 1 January 2009. As a result, the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner
changes in equity are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. This presentation
has been applied in these financial statements as at and
for the year ended 31 December 2009. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss,
total income and expense or net assets for any period
presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to IFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
in Note 27(f) about the fair value measurement of
the Group’s financial instruments, categorising these
fair value measurements into a three-level fair value
hierarchy according to the extent to which they are
based on observable market data. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to IFRS 7, under which comparative
information for the newly required disclosures about the
fair value measurements of financial instruments has not
been provided.
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4

SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has three reportable segments, as sales of
coal, sales of iron ore and shipping transportation, which
are the Group’s strategic business units. The strategic
business units offer different products and services,
and are managed separately because they require
different technology and marketing strategies. For each
of the strategic business units, the CEO reviews internal
management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the CEO
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
adjusted profit before net finance costs and taxes.
[tems not specifically attributable to individual segments,
such as gain from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets, unallocated head office and corporate
administration costs are further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in financial assets, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and
other payables attributable to activities of the individual
segments and loans and borrowings managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 SEWE(E)
(@)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) @ oEpEE - BEMAE(E)
Sales of Coal Sales of Iron Ore Shipping Transportation Total
RiE HRRHE WEER @it

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
EEAF CTRNF OCEERAE O CTR\E CEEAE CERE CEEAE CTT)R
RMB'000  RVMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'00O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARNTT ARBTR  ARMTT ARBTR  ARETR

Tumover from extemal customers SN EPE %8 3,961,403 4,050,170 506,845 - 58,745 142314 3926998 4,192,484
Inter-segment tumover AHRERE - - - - 148,036 68,289 148,036 68,289
Reportable segment tumover &% 4 e L 3,361,408 4,060,170 506,845 - 206,781 210603 4075029 4260773
Reportable segment WHRESBRAERA

profit/(loss) before income tax &7/ (5i2) 255,648 299,49 34,076 - (25,553) 52,813 264,171 362,309
Depreciation and amortisation  FR{TER &8

for the year 5911 5424 - - 70,364 32474 76,275 37,898
Reportable segment assets ~ WHEAHEE 3442408 1521885 16,864 - 1138966 957546 4,508,283 2,479,431
Reportable segment liabiities  THEAHEE (25920100 (853931) = - (1060935 (343382 (3652045 (1697319
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4

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Turnover

Reportable segment turnover
Elimination of inter-segment turnover

Consolidated turnover

Profit

Reportable segment profit

before income tax
Elimination of inter-segment loss
Unallocated head office

and corporate (expenses)/income
Net finance costs

Consolidated profit before income tax
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(o) FIMEDEHEFERE B
BERBEYHER
B
2009 2008
—2ThE —TBNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBT T
4,075,029 4,260,773
(148,036) (68,289)
3,926,993 4,192,484
b
2009 2008
—BBhE —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
264,171 352,309
249 3,770
(6,799) 87,797
(30,057) (48,577)
227,564 395,299
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4

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

4

Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Elimination of inter-segment
receivables and inventories

Elimination of receivables from
head office

Deferred tax assets

Unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Elimination of inter-segment payables
Elimination of payables to head office
Current tax liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

AREDPEE
o SRR R K.
TFE 2 EiH
A ESUNE]
FIE 2 1 88
BRI IEE EE
APEEE

A BERE

AHEDEAE

7 BB FE R 1
e 4 X RIFRIB 2 14
BIHARIR B (&
AOBECRE
meaBEesE

PEIRE ()
() FIMEDEBHEFERE - B
BENEGELHRE)
EE
2009 2008
—EEAEF —EEN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
4,598,233 2,479,431
(256,563) (405,554)
(219,502) -
6,561 11,411
31,977 194
4,160,706 2,085,482
i=F
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
3,652,945 1,697,313
(255,469) (404,444)
(790,855) -
167,578 57,658
9,220 -
2,783,419 1,350,527
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B R ERARBTRE

4

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(©

Geographic information

The Group’s total assets are primarily dominated by
the assets handling its coal, iron ore and shipping
businesses. The coal and iron ore are sold primarily
to the PRC domestic customers and therefore related
assets and liabilities are almost all located in the PRC.
The vessels are primarily utilised across geographical
market for shipping transportation throughout the world.
As a result, the directors consider that it is not meaningful
to allocate the Group’s assets and their related capital
expenditure to specific geographical segments.
Accordingly, geographical segment information is
only presented for turnover, which is based on the
geographical location of customers.

Turnover from external customers

Inside Mainland PRC EREpN N
Outside Mainland PRC FR B R B A
Total A&t

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

4

7 ERERE ()
(© EEH

AEENREETZREEH
Bk - HEARMERBNE
E-RREEBAIEETH
BEAEE Bt EEEE
RABEFHUNTE - Ef
TEAREKRBEANERR
EmiGe Bt BEERR R
HEwE e n A AKEEE
REHBEARXYLEESE -
At - A E P A EN
BEfEMEXERIMEDF

SNERE R
2009 2008
=t L iR — A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT
3,522,518 3,986,609
404,475 205,875
3,926,993 4,192,484
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PR ERAR BT RE

TURNOVER

The Group is mainly engaged in sales of coal, sales of iron ore
and shipping transportation businesses.

Turnover mainly represents the sales of goods and charter hire
income.

The amount of each significant category of turnover
recognised during the year is as follows:

Sales of coal IR EHS
Sales of iron ore HIEAHEE
Charter hire income He A

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes three
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s turnover during the year ended 31 December
2009 (2008: two). Turnover from sales of coal and sales of
iron ore to these three customers, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control
with these three customers, amounted to approximately
RMB613,660,000, RMB426,537,000 and RMB396,026,000
respectively and arose both inside Mainland PRC and outside
Mainland PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, turnover arose
from sales of coal to the two customers, including sales to
entities which are known to the Group to be under common
control with these two customers, amounted to approximately
RMB1,108,926,000 and RMB1,024,242,000 respectively and
arose inside Mainland PRC.

ERE

AEBEERRFRREE - HEAHE
ERAUE BB T

LEBEREHESMBRARES
A e

REASEZRREXBSEIIIW

T
2009 2008
—EEBNF e AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

3,361,403 4,050,170
506,845 =
58,745 142,314

3,926,993 4,192,484

REBZREFEMRELZ - HRBER
SRS AEBEE_TTNE+=
A=+—HBIEFEHHEz K= 10% A
2 =RBBE(ZZTTNFE: —F) -
MZE=Z2EFPHEREXREEAR
ZEET(BREHEAAEREZE =
BEPHRAEG CER 2 EEE) D
A4 A R #13,660,0007T © A R #
426,537,000 7t &2 A R ¥ 396,026,000
7T+ THRE R BIAREERSN -

HE_ZZNF+_A=+—H1t
FE RMEEFHEEREEZ
EXH(EREFAEERAZE
EEHAREHcER 2EERE) DA
4 A R #1,108,926,000 7T &2 A R #
1,024,242,0007T * J5 2R B R B K
BEA o
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B R ERARBTRE

6 OTHER INCOME

Government grants BT B &

Gain from disposal of SR &
available-for-sale BEE E WA
financial assets

Others HAtb

()  The Group received unconditional grants from local
government for the years of 2009 and 2008 as
recognition of its development.

(i)  On 24 July 2008, the Group entered into a share sale
agreement with a third party to dispose of the available-
for-sale financial assets, which represented the 2.3%
equity interests held by the Group in Millennium Coal
Pty Ltd located at the Bowen Basin of Australia, at a
consideration of 18,126,000 Australian dollars. The gain
on such disposal amounted to RMB97,085,000.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

Hetg A
2009 2008
- —ETN\E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P&t ARMTR AR®ETRT

(i)

(i)

14,254 3,230
- 97,085

941 888
15,195 101,208

AREN-FEAERR T
B\ B A R
HEEOEETRDS -

RZZFEZENFELAZ+WEA -
REBEE=FEIZE R
FONHETHEESRE
EE (BN & E 7 R B M Bowen
Basin Ay Millennium Coal Pty
LtdFTH5rB 2.3% % HE) - R(EA
18,126,0003R 7T © 5% [} & W &
A AR 97,085,000 7T °
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7  PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 BRBANGEF
Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREADEFIE R, GIA) AT SIE ¢
(@  Net finance costs @ BBKANFRE
2009 2008
—EERE —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Interest income A B A (11,532) (9,8398)

Net foreign exchange gain PE H Wem F 58 (1,702) (5,895)

(13,234) (15,733)

Interest on borrowings EEF L 33,413 66,062

Less: interest capitalised into property, 33 : #1% - BE MR ES

plant and equipment* BEERMEAE (437) (8,634)

32,976 57,428

Bank charges RITER 10,315 6,882

Finance costs IR IDN 43,291 64,310

Net finance costs B TSR AR 58 30,057 48,577
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at an * BEEABRFEFNE320% (=T
annual rate of 3.20% (2008: 5.36%-6.49%). J\EF : 5.36%-6.49%) T IAE AL °
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B R ERARBTRE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Staff costs

Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T& r%&ﬁi\ﬁﬂ%f |

Contribution to defined A1 E REAE R B
contribution plan

Equity-settled share-based B S EE AR
payment expenses AERER

The Group participates in pension funds organised
by the PRC government. According to the respective
pension fund regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions during the year. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the respective social
security offices, which are responsible for the payments
and liabilities relating to the pension funds. The Group
has no obligation for payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contributions described above.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for all of its employees
employed by the Company in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employee’s
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

BRBLAIRR (&)
(b) EBIRKAK
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTRT AR¥ETE

32,351 18,740
698 534
2,090 =
35,139 19,274

AEE2BFEBFABNRKRS -
REGENERERP] > AEBAR
RN FEHRR - NEEE
NeHEREHRERRRAEARA
NRkBENZELSRERER
B B RSN - AEEMERES N
RN R B AR B R IKEAEA -

RIBEBHERE R SERD - NEE
RABRAAEETERERAERML
FRBIMERTESRKEFG S (278
58 - HADRBREEAFH S
ZFREEDLEE - WiIRMR B
8l 2 RAIZBB N HARE R RS 2K
ARNRHI - BRREFTE cEERLR
KECEENFH ABYEEZES
FA - BRAKE#N 2 EEBRIEHR
FIN - AEEBN 2 A REHRN
FAREDEIRABERMA °
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7  PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7 BREANER (&)
() Otheritems ) EmIaHE
2009 2008
—EBhE —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Cost of inventories* FERA 3,287,155 3,484,703
Operating lease charges VISR &

on premises HEER 5,425 4,211
Depreciation for the property, v E

plant and equipment NS E 76,135 37,758
Amortisation of lease prepayments ~ FAETET FRIA S 140 140
Write-down of inventories to WRFEE

net realisable value ATEIREE - 30,984
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE S

— audit services — R 2,234 237

— non-audit services — JEEARTE 105 -

* Cost of inventories includes RMB1,833,000 (2008: * FERADRBFEEINA - &
RMB34,176,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation A kiR TE = 0] 35 FEEE
expenses and write-down of inventories to net 7 A R #1,833,000t( ZFEZF )N\
realisable value, which amounts are also included in F: AR#34,176,0007T) * BlE
the respective total amounts disclosed separately B ARSZERIERIN L
above for each of these types of expenses. NEBREOEBESE -
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8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@ Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

Current tax expense BNEATR TR 2
- PRC Income Tax —HhEIFEE
Deferred tax IRIETHIE
— Origination and reversal of —ERERED
temporary differences iy EPNEAIE]

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as
these subsidiaries did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year
(2008: Nil).

(i)  Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the

PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to
income tax rate of 25%.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

8.

FRGBiBA

(@)

(i)

(i)

RiFEE2EBARDAEHEFE
¥R

2009 2008
—EBNF —TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

93,211 71,314
4,850 (6,705)
98,061 64,609

REFSHEREBRLES
R AR A S AR B - AN SR B B A
MRESHERAEBRELHEEN
ERIFTSH

RN B ENE QTN FAE
ERERBEM(ZFTN\F
&) BAKREYESBBNE
AL -

RIBFPBEEEMEIOL A&
= P B P B 2 RIZE B 256% TR
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8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8.

(@)

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(iv)  Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC, 5% withholding tax is levied on a Hong
Kong company in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a PRC foreign investment enterprise’s
profit earned after 1 January 2008. As at 31
December 2009, temporary withholding tax
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of PRC subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB97,012,000 (2008: Nil). Deferred tax liabilities
of RMB4,851,000 (2008: Nil) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that
it is probable that profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

Profit before tax B R BT R
Expected tax on profit before tax, A AR R E M

calculated at the applicable tax rate B 7% il K 60 78 2R R 18

Non-taxable income BERBIUIRA
Non-deductible expenses AR X
Income tax expense e

FrEHmx (&)

(@ MEAEEBARNMFHA
i (&)

(iv) BEPBEGEMSTE -
AERBREARFRINE R
EN=ZZTZENF—F—H
1& BRER &9 4 ) i 2 4 B0 AR
B0 IRIR T E 5% # I 18
e RZZEZNF+ =
A=+—8  B@E+REH
B R RIH AT 2K m A ER
RENHREZE2HR/AR
#97,012,000 L(=ZE=F
NE: &) BHRARA
EEZERBARMNRE
BUR R EEE TR A T8
RARRADIREF - Bt
I 4 9 K 5% E 1R B8 i A
A IEERARE
4,851,000 T(ZZEZE N
F - EmRNELERIBERE -

b RERABRFEZHBERS R
SatmMz Bk

2009 2008
—BAE —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

227,564 395,299
85,536 98,825
= (35,098)
12,525 882
98,061 64,609
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8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(c) Current taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:

Balance at beginning of the year
Provision for income tax for the year
Income tax refunded during the year

Income tax paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

FHRERR

FRMSHEE

FAREH TSR

FATHI PSR
FRRIEER

8.

FrEHmx (&)

(@) RUBANKABNEITIRLE

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
57,658 107,857
93,211 71,314
24,835 -
(8,126) (121,513)
167,578 57,658
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEM#
Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: EEME 2FFBOT ¢
Salaries,
allowances  Contri-
and butions to Share-
benefits retirement based
inkind  benefit  Discre- payment 2009
Directors’ EZ&Z &+ schemes tionary MR Total
Bz fee  EEER BIKEF bonuses Sub-total AE® —EFENEF
Name of directors ESHe BYET HFEMR BERA Mt 2R #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARSTT AR¥TT ARBTT ARETT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”) wEELE((RrE]) - 793 6 1,000 1,799 - 1,799
Ms. Wang Jianfei TalRat - 662 6 1,000 1,668 - 1,668
Ms. Liu Xiaomei BlgEtgt - 300 6 100 406 180 586
Mr. Weng Li SURE - 462 2 500 964 - 964
Independent non-executive BV FH{TES
directors
Mr. Chen Wenjing B - - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Guosheng BEBEE 129 - - - 129 = 129
Mr. Liu Xiyuan 2GREE 127 - - - 127 - 127
256 2,217 20 2,600 5,093 180 5,273
Salaries,
allowances Contri-
and butions to Share-
benefits  retirement based
in kind benefit Discre- payment 2008
Directors' ZZA% % +  schemes tionary PR {7 Total
EEMY fee BN EINBR  bonuses Sub-total  AEKE —TENE
Name of directors 520 BEWEN SRR BERA Nt ZHE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Xu (s - 307 5 - 312 - 312
Ms. Wang Jianfei THRaL - 302 4 - 306 = 306
Ms. Liu Xiaomei BBt - 219 4 - 223 - 223
Mr. Weng Li HUKE - 252 2 - 254 - 254
- 1,080 15 - 1,095 - 1,095
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9.

Mr. Chen Wenjing, Mr. Huang Guosheng and Mr. Liu Xiyuan
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of
the Company on 12 June 2009. Mr. Chen Wenjing agreed to
waive all of his remuneration amounted to RMB129,000 in total
during the year.

An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the number of
directors and remuneration range is as follows:

Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 770

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7 t2 1,500,00078 7T
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 87T 2 2,000,000/ 7T
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 87T & 2,500,00078 7T

There were no amounts paid during the year (2008: Nil) to the
directors in connection with their retirement from employment
with the Group, or inducement to join.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

EEME(E)

BRICER ST A -~ mBIRS ST £ R B8R IR 5T
ER_ZEENF AT+ _HEZTA
RATVEYIERITES - FRGREAE
BB MERF AL AR 129,000
TCZE B o

REZHA LM BEDS T < ESM
ST

2009 2008
—EBBNF —ETENF
Number of Number of

directors directors
E="A EEHA
4 4

1 —

1 —

1 —

FR - NRBAERE FHEMRE
AEEESRNA R 2 ARAAN
B (—TT)\F : |) -
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10

11

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10. EEFEHAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year FRN - AEBRAERSFHZALTE
include three directors of the Company (2008: four), whose BEARARIZ=ZREF(ZZEENF:
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above. M) HFBMRIAEDITE - [
Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid AEEBESREEHIA L F2BE
individuals of the Group are as follows: FHIFWE ¢
2009 2008
—EThE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Salaries, allowances and EARF S - F/L
benefits in kind REMEF 1,156 582
Contributions to retirement RIREFIET IR
benefit schemes 13 11
Discretionary bonuses EIEIEAL 588 —
Share-based payment LARRAD B 2R 2 15Kk 147 =
1,904 593
The emoluments of the two (2008: one) individuals with the —HR(ZTENF  —R)ESFMA
highest emoluments are within the following bands: TZHMAT
2009 2008
—EThEF —EEN\EF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T — 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 2 -
There were no amounts paid during the year (2008: Nil) to the FA - AREALER R AR=FTESR
five highest paid employees in connection with their retirement AT E B E B ANEER NG 2 5K
from employment with the Group, or inducement to join. RSN R (ZTT)N\FE - &) -
PROFIT ATTRIBUTIBLE TO EQUITY 11 RAREEFEAEGRF

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB5,307,000 (2008: Nil)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

RARERFTA ABIGGRE B BIE
ERARBIIMEHREREEZEEAR
#5,307,000 70 (ZBE/)\4F : &) o
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12 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 12 HtzmE\A
(@) Tax effects relating to each component of other @ HEmERARFAEL I D
comprehensive income: MR
2009 2008
ZEERE “EEN\F
Tax Tax

(expense)/ (expense)/
Before-  benefit  Net-of-  Before-  benefit  Net-of-
tax BB tax tax WA tax

amount (XH)/ amount amount (XH)/  amount
HAeHE i BHALE HicE Ka Bk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETL

Exchange differences on translation of ~ EEINHIB AR

financial statements of overseas ipysE
subsidiaries ERES (46) - (46)  (24,666) - (24,666)
Net change in fair value of avallable- AL E S RYAER
for-sale financial assets DHEZHEE 12,918 - 12918 (86,205 - (86,209)
Other comprehensive income Hip2EKA 12,872 - 12872 (110871) - (110871)
(b) Reclassification adjustments relating to components of (b) HiE2mEARAKZDHD A E
other comprehensive income: o fER
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENESREE
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZETENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Changes in fair value recognised FAEERN AL EED)
during the year 12,918 —
Reclassification adjustments for ER SRR S EEN
amounts transferred to profit or loss: D 4EFHEE :
— gain on disposal — HEkE - (86,205)

Net movement in the fair value reserve R Efth & EW A
during the year recognised in other ~ FERRIA 7 B
comprehensive income 2 BT 12,918 (86,205)
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BRER
(@  Basic earnings per share @ BRERER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based SESRERERTHAFERAKR
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders NEEmRFE ARG RNAR
of the Company of RMB129,503,000 (2008: #129,508,0007L( = & T N\
RMB330,690,000) and the weighted average of F: A K #330,690,0007T )
890,616,000 ordinary shares (2008: 750,000,000 KB BT & R IR F 19 2R
ordinary shares after adjusting for the capitalisation issue 890,616,000f% ( =T & N\ 4 :
in 2009) in issue during the year, calculated as follows: AZBENEFEERNLEITHE
1 750,000,000 % ) k4% - IR
SEWMT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR K IR T 9 2
2009
—EENAF
Number of shares
G AR
Ordinary shares issued at 1 January R—A—BETLER 1
Issuance of shares upon the Reorganisation ~ E4BZ1TH%1D 999,999
Effect of capitalisation issue BEARLEITHE
(see Note 26(b)i) (2B 26(b)(iii)) 749,000,000
Effect of shares issued on BARAARBERRNEITH
Initial Public Offering (see Note 26(b)(iv)) 52 (25K 26(b)(v) 123,972,000
Effect of shares issued under the RARA A & H B RR AL AR BT
over-allotment option related to B2 2 (2B 26(0)(v))
the placement (see Note 26(b)(v)) 16,644,000
Weighted average number of M= RA=+—HArymkE
ordinary shares at 31 December FHRHE R 890,616,000
The weighted average number of shares in issue during BE_ZT)\E+_A=1+—HItF
the year ended 31 December 2008 represents the BB BT IEFL S BER R
750,000,000 shares in issue before the listing of shares BT T AT A9 2 3 77 R 19 750,000,000
on The Stock Exchange, as if such shares had been f%  BEIZERM R T )\ FE(E
outstanding during the entire year of 2008. FREBET -
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b)  Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2009 is the same as the calculation
of basic earnings per share for this year. The Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (see Note 24(a)) does not give
rise to any dilution effect on the Company’s earnings per
share and there were no other dilutive potential ordinary
shares in existence during the year. Diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2008 is not
presented as there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in existence during the year ended 31 December
2008.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&E#&EEAR QT

13 SREBRN (&)

(b)

FhEE T

AEBE_ZZTAFLT A
=T HUEFENERETR
MRS FEFESRERENE
[ o BRAFE SR B RER
2 (23K 24(a) WEH AR
AERABMNELTM#HITE
BFERYEEMESERRT
- AREBEE-_TTNF+=
A=+—HALLFEILEHEM#
BEAREE AHE8E—F
ENF+A=+—RHLLFE
MEREERNALESS -
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gy E I ER
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% - BMERRZRE
The Group REE
Electronic Assets
Plant and and other Motor under
buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles Vessels ~ construction Total

RERET BIREE  RHRE i &k nEEE it
RVBOOO  RVBOO  RVBOOO  RVBOOO  RWBOO  RWBO0  RWBO
ARBTT  ARBTL  ARBTI  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR

Cost i

At 1 January 2008 N-FENE-A-R 39,658 4,99 2,39 12816 143509 3923 59583
Addtions i 1518 1434 45 6,627 U058 42650 456703
Disposals ik - - - (1,946) - - (1,946)
Transfers | - - - - B0%T  (5T0257) -
Exchange difference EREE - - - - (16,459) (29788) (46,247)
At 31 Decerber 2008 W-FENE+=A=1-8 41,176 6,432 2813 7497 T4 21498 1004341
Addtons RE - 384 33 1791 46450 101452 150400
Disposals ik - - - - (5,581) - (5,581)
Transfers 1 = = - - 310488 (310,488) -
Exchange difference EHEE - - - - (807) (109 (916)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENETZA=1-8 176 6,816 3,1% 19288 1,072,005 5823 1148044
Accumulated depreciation ZifE

At 1 January 2008 R-EEN\F-A-R (3,009) (1949 (1,063) Bodl)  (29999) - (£2,645)
Charge for the year Eni (1,959 619) (39%0) 035 (32469 - (37,759)
Writen back on dlsposals k=313 - - - 129 - - 1,292
Exchange difference EiEE - - - - 2,453 - 2,453
At 31 Decermber 2008 RZEENETZA=1T-8 (4,964 (2559 (1459 7o1)  (60009) - (76,659)
Charge for the year ERTi .027) 102) (446) 0604 (10356) - (76,139)
Whitten back on disposals HEHME - - - - 675 - 675
Exchange diference Eizg - - - - 105 - 105
At 31 December 2009 RZEENETZA=1-A (6,991) (3260) (1,899) (10278 (129,58 - (152019
Carrying amounts R

At 31 December 2008 RZEENETZA=1-A 3,212 3874 1,360 9823 661446 214068 927,683
At 31 Decermber 2009 R-EENFT-A=1-A 34,185 3,55 1297 9010 94240 583 996231
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15 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

15. HEEFESFE

The Group AEE
RMB’000
AREETTT
Cost A
At 1 January 2008, and RZZEZNF—H—8  —TTNF
31 December 2008 and 2009 M _ZBENF+_A=+—H 6,998
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 January 2008 RZZEENFE—H—H (665)
Charge for the year FARZH (140)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZFN\F+-A=+—H (805)
Charge for the year FAZH (140)
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+_A=+—H (945)
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2008 R-_ZEZN\F+_A=+—H 6,193
At 31 December 2009 RZETZNGF+ZA=+—H 6,053
Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights in respect HERNRBEFREEHEAERA50
of land located in the PRC with a lease period of 50 years when F R B i Y £t 5P AR AR A AN o
granted.

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT
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16

17

OTHER INVESTMENTS 16 HtEkE
The Group EE
2009 2008
—EZhEF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRHEE 30,390 =
The available-for-sale financial assets represent the equity AHHESMRERASERE —XK
interests held by the Group in Tiaro Coal Limited (“Tiaro Coal’), FORIMN TR B R - AL A R
a company incorporated in the State of New South Wales Tiaro Coal Limited ([ Tiaro Coal|) (£
in Australia with its shares listed on the Australian Securities IR FERIMNTE 53X 5 P 2 ) Bch -
Exchange. The fair value of the available-for-sale financial AEHESREERAERTIZR
assets was measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in B CREHAE)FTE -
active markets.
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17 EBEHEEE
The Group AEH
Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of the RZFENF  ARECHRHEL
deferred tax assets during 2009: HARERALES) -
Credited/
(charged)
to consolidated
statement of
comprehensive
At income At
1 January st A%E 31 December
2009 ZEWRARS 2009
R-ZZThF (B&FE2E R=ZZh&F
—HA—H WAZRMER) +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ET T AR®T T
Deferred tax assets arising from: EX£R F5&EH
EERIEEE :
Utilisation of write-down of inventories &) FA1F EH#UR 7,746 (7,746) -
Unrealised profit arising from PR EisE SETAPNG]
intra-group transactions elimination MR SmESE
AR B IR Ve ) 3,665 2,896 6,561
11,411 (4,850) 6,561
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B R ER AR BTEE

17 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued) 17 EEBEEE (&)
Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of the N_ZBE)NFE » NEBBERNEL
deferred tax assets during 2008: HIBEENHEE :
Credited/
(charged)

to consolidated
statement of

comprehensive
At income At
1 January A% &EME 31 December
2008 WARK 2008

RZFZTN\EF  (BRezE KRITTN\F
—A—H WARIER) +ZA=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T ARBTTT

Deferred tax assets arising from: E4R T3 &EEMN

EERIEEE :
Write-down of inventories FEMOR - 7,746 7,746
Taxable losses carried forward HEHEE AN A A 1,002 (1,002) =
Unrealised profit arising from ESHE E A
intra-group transactions elimination MRS MmEE
AR A 3,704 (39) 3,665
4,706 6,705 11,411
18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 RKEQRMNIRE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTTT
Unlisted shares, at cost LTI - BERAE 658,807 =
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries LATEHEAEEZEE  EESE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the BEKEEFEZNBARIEER ° K
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise FHAEFRAN - FIRRDIE R TR -

stated.

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT
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18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation

Name of company R s

NGIEEE PRI B

Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands

REREFRAF] E )i
(IRERE D)

Perpetual Goodluck Hong Kong
Limited (“Perpetual”) EB

Perpetual Goodluck
Limited ([ Perpetual ] )

Liberal City Limited Hong Kong
(“Liberal”) 5

Liberal City Limited
([Liberal])

Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong
Shipping Limited E8
(“Qinfa Shipping”)

BRREME
BRAT
(M=EHE D)

Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Hong Kong
Limited (“Qinfa EB
Trading”)

ERREEHAR
RAI([REES )

Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong
International B
Trading Limited
(“Qinfa International”)

ERREERE S
BRAF]

(MR )

Super Grace Enterprises British Virgin
Limited (“Super Islands
Grace”) RERAEHS

Super Grace Enterprises
Limited ([ Super
Grace])

18 RHBLARMNRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

HERERER LA
Group’s Held by

effective the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary
AEE HEALF 2] 0
BERES BB ARER
100% 100% -
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% — 100%
100% - 100%

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital
ERTRAZ
A&

USD4,801/
USD50,000
4,801 %7,/
50,000 7T

HKD1,000/
HKD1,000
1,000 7T,/
1,000 7T

HKD1,000/
HKD1,000
1,000 7T,
1,000 7T

HKD10,000/
HKD10,000
10,0008t/
10,000 7T

HKD30,000,000/
HKD30,000,000
30,000,000 7T,/
30,000,000 % 7T

HKD10,000/
HKD10,000
10,000387T,/
10,000 7T

USD50,000/
USD50,000
50,000% T,
50,000 7T
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Principal activities

ETREK

Investment holding

KREZER

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

P miE s LR
AR EwmHE

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

7 aniE d S
AREHEE

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

P mE R X
AR EmHE

Sales of coal and
investment holding
BERIHE Rk
BEER

Sales of iron ore

HEAHE

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire
[l &b
AR EmHE
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18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERER LA
Place of Group’s Held by
establishment/ effective the Held by a
incorporation interest Company subsidiary
Name of company FRSZ R AEE HAATF =000
NGIEEE PRI 2 B K8 2QEFE
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics The PRC 100% = 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa A
Logistics”)
WERBEMRARA A
(I=Emwl)
Datong Xiejiazhuang The PRC 100% = 100%
Jinfa Trading and =2]
Transportation Co.,
Ltd. (“Datong Jinfa”)
ANRPBRIEE
EIHERAR]
(TREEE])
Yangyuan Guotong The PRC 100% - 100%
Coal Trading and =2
Transportation Co.,
Ltd. (“Yangyuan
Guotong”)
5 [ B s s
ABRAH
(ME5R B )
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., The PRC 100% = 100%
Ltd. (“Zhuhai Qinfa A
Trading”)
WEREEHBERAR
(RE=EES])
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping The PRC 100% - 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai A
Qinfa Shipping”)
WEREMBAR AR
(MRE=EME])
Qinhuangdao The PRC 100% = 100%
Development Zone 2]
Qinfa Trading Co.,
Ltd. (“Qinhuangdao
Trading”)
BHHERAE
(RESE5H])

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital
ERTREBE
-

HKD20,000,000/
HKD20,000,000
20,000,0003& 7T,
20,000,000 7T

RMB8,000,000/
RMBS8,000,000
AER#8,000,007T,
AR 8,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000/
RMB10,000,000
AER#10,000,0007T,
AR%10,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000/
RMB5,000,000
5,000,000 7T,

AR 5,000,000 7T

RMBS5,000,000/
RMB5,000,000
5,000,000 7T,

AR¥5,000,000 7T

RMB68,000,000/
RMB68,000,000
A 68,000,0007T,
ARH 68,000,000 7T

18 RKBLARWRE (&)

Principal activities
FTEXK

Warehousing and
transportation
service

BENERRYS

Sales of coal
B EHE

Sales of coal

BEIRSHE

Sales of coal

BEIRSHE

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

i miE R R
AR EwmHE

Sales of coal
IR EHE
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18

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company
NGIEEE

Zhuhai Qinfa Resource
Development
Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Resource”)
WERER
BERARAR
(MEREsR 1)

Bright Rock Holdings
Limited (“Bright
Rock”)

Bright Rock Holdings
Limited ([ Bright
Rock )

Oriental Wise Group
Limited (“Oriental
Wise”)

Oriental Wise Group
Limited ([ Oriental
Wise |)

Qinfa Chartering Limited
(“Qinfa Chartering”)
Qinfa Chartering Limited

([Qinfa Chartering |)

Qinfa Shipping Group
Limited (“Qinfa
Shipping Group”)

Qinfa Shipping Group
Limited ([ Qinfa
Shipping Group )

Baotou Danghui
Materials Trading
Co., Ltd. (“Baotou
Danghui”)

BEMEBNE
BSARAA]
(BEEE])

Ordos Jinfa Materials
Co., Ltd. (“Ordos
Jinfa”)

BRLHTTEE
MERRAR
(ISBRZEER])

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
FRSZ AR
RO 2h

The PRC
H

British Virgin
Islands

RBRARS

British Virgin
Islands

REELES

British Virgin
Islands
RBEREZHE

British Virgin
Islands

ESl e

The PRC
i

The PRC
&

18 RHBLARMNRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

HERERER LA
Group’s Held by

effective the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary
AEE HEALF B Y 8
B R BB ARER
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital
ERITRAR
A&

RMB1,000,000/
RMB1,000,000
AR®1,000,0007T,
AR 1,000,000 7T

USD1/USD50,000
125 /50,000 £ 7T

USD1/USD50,000
13575,/50,000 7T

USD1/USD50,000
137T,/50,000 % 7T

USD1/USD50,000
13£75,/50,000 %75

RMB10,000,000/
RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T,
ARHE 10,000,000 7T

RMB10,000,000/
RMB10,000,000
AER#10,000,000 7T,
AR#10,000,000 7T
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Principal activities
FTEXH

Not yetcommenced
operation
RFIIREE

Investment holding
RERR

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

[EER &b
AR EREE

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

P miE R R
AR EmEE

Goods transport
and logistics, and
charter hire

P miE R R
AR EmEE

Sales of coal

BEIRSHE

Investment holding
REER
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19 INVENTORIES 19 =&
The Group AEE
2009 2008
—ETAE —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Finished goods B o 244,622 57,450
Goods in transit FEEY 103,247 8,022
Fuel Y 10,255 12,241
358,124 77,713

The inventories as at 31 December 2009 were stated at cost
(81 December 2008: Provision of RMB30,984,000 was made
against those inventories with net realisable value lower than
carrying value).

FER-_ZFENF+_A=1t—RH#%
AR ZEENFE+ A=+
B % EFFENAZ2EFEERE
BR TH B 1F I B 5 A K # 30,984,000
)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 BEWEZERIRRHEMmERRKIE
The Group The Company
AEE VA/NE
2009 2008 2009 2008

—ERAE —TEN\F ZBEBRAE _—TIN\F

RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETT AR®BTR ARETRT

Trade debtors and bills FEWE ZRH K
receivable (see Note (i) FEUW =%
(2B () 565,451
Prepayment for investments 1% & B
(see Note (ii)) (2 BB EE (i) 169,320
Deposits and prepayments & MIBA 556,358

Amount due from subsidiaries & Ut BB A & RE -
Other non-trade receivables ~ HAIEEZ ZEUKNERFR 58,703

200,643 ~ -
134,141 — -
— 800,551 =
40,774 48 -

1,349,832

375,558 800,599 =

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year. The Group’s exposure to credit
and currency risks related to trade and other receivables is
disclosed in Note 27.

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

FrE W E S IR & H A AR R TEH —
FRYE - AEEHEKE SRR R
HREMERERREERRRH
27 HREE -
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

@

Trade debtors and bills receivable included bank
acceptance bills of RMB41,687,000 as at 31 December
2009 (31 December 2008: RMB4,900,000), which have

been discounted to banks.

An ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable

(net of impairment for bad and doubtful debts) of the

Group is as follows:

Within 1 month

Over 1 month but
less than 3 months

Over 3 months but
less than 6 months

—fEAR
—fER AL
BrBE={EA
=fERAAE
BB /< fE A

Credit terms granted to customers ranged from 0 to 30

days depending on the customer’s relationship with the

Group, their creditworthiness and settlement record.

20 EWEZRARHMERR(E)

) RZZEZEAF+Z=ZA=+—
B EUEIERREKEZE
BIEERRITAENRITHA R
=g AR 41,687,000L (=ZF
ENF+_A=+—H: AR
# 4,900,000 7T) °

ANEEE ) e U E 5 BR 2k K e IR
ZR(BNBRRERRE) B
EROMTIAT

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

501,197 157,816
42,693 33,173
21,561 9,654

565,451 200,643

AEEREFRETE=FTX
TENEEYR RFFFPHERN
SEMER  HERNARMSK
FCERTE e
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)

Prepayment for investments includes:

1)

Prepayment for the acquisition of Shanxi Hun Yuan
Rui Feng Coal Company Limited (“Ruifeng Coal”)

On 17 August 2009, Datong Jinfa, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an equity interest
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) with, amongst others, Shanxi
Ruifeng Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi
Ruifeng”), which held a 87.88% equity interest
in Ruifeng Coal. Pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, Shanxi Ruifeng agreed to sell its
entire interest in Ruifeng Coal to Datong Jinfa at a
consideration of RMB130,000,000.

As at 31 December 2009, Datong Jinfa had paid
RMB108,120,000 of the total consideration,
and the required closing matters relating to the
acquisition have not yet been completed.

Prepayment for the acquisition of Ordos Bayin
Mengke Nayuan Coal Co., Ltd. (“Nayuan Coal”)

On 30 December 2009, Ordos Jinfa, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an Acquisition and
Debt Restructuring Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Ordos Bayin Mengke Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. and other individual investors of Ordos Bayin
Mengke Nayuan Coal (collectively referred to as
the “Vendors”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Vendors agreed to sell their 60% equity interest in
Ordos Bayin Mengke Nayuan Coal to Ordos Jinfa
at a consideration of RMB857,300,000.

As at 31 December 2009, Ordos Jinfa had paid
RMB61,200,000 of the total consideration, and the
required closing matters relating to the acquisition
have not yet been completed.

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

20 EWEZRARHEMERIR(E)

(i)

REBMNKERE

1)

Wi L P B R R B IR
N (TR D) ZFANR

R=_ZFEZAFNA++t
= IEN/NG |y =N PN
B || Pt 2R L
BRAR(MLUFAHRE )T
R EEE RS (R
EEpal)  Lam e
B I B £ 87.88% MY %
T o RIS R
WA EZRIEUREAR
#130,000,000 7T H & H
RimRE 2 r 2 2D T
KNEIEE -

RZZEZENF + = A8
=+—H' KRR &%
EXHBEREARE
108,120,0007T * A M A
BB EEHEETK Z &
REE MR °

WESBAZAMES &
MIRIRRBR AR (TR
BER 1) 2 FBIER

RZZEZNF+_A=+
B AREIWNERRSE
ZHEERSFZHME
SEAREEEERAR
MEBZ e S R
RExRZEMEARE
HHEBRIERD F5
UebE M &S E A ([ 5%
el BBz
EREAEAREBARE
857,300,000 7T [ SpER % A
BRHESRZIMES
TR AR IR 2 BOYRRAE °

R_ZEZAE+ = A
=t+—H BBRZHE
BEXBERBARE
61,200,000 * AT A
ZWIBEEIHBTN Z R
EHEATK °
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21

22

PLEDGED DEPOSITS
Bank deposits of RMB1,037,328,000 as at 31 December
2009 (31 December 2008: RMB485,425,000) were pledged to

banks to secure certain of the Group’s bank facilities (see Note
23).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(@ Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

21 BIEEER

—TTEANF+-_A=+—8 " 8§17
F & A R %1,037,328,000T( =
TEENFE+-_A=1t—H8: AR¥
485,425,000 7t ) B IR T B RBARITIE
RAEEETRITEENER(RH
F£23) -

22 BERREEEY

@ RERBASFEVERE:

The Group The Company
A 5@ AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF  -DT\F  -EEAF  -TB\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT AR®TRT ARETET

Deposits with banks within R =1{& A Z|&f
three months’ maturity HYERITIF X 21,472
Cash at banks and on hand  $R1T R FiEIRE 354,715

32,368 = =
169,131 1,324 =
376,187 201,499 1,324 =
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B R ER AR BTEE

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (used in)/

generated from operations:

Profit before income tax

Adjustment for:
Depreciation for property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of lease prepayments
Net finance costs
Gain from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses

Changes in working capital:
Change in inventories
Change in trade and

other receivables
Change in trade and

other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

ERFTS AT 5 7l

BN FIRIAEL AR |
MxE ~ BE &
REITE

TR ETAN FRIA 3

BTSRRI 38
HERHHES R
BAEW S

RS EEIARD
RERMNK

BEELED
HEE
HEACER 585 30 B
HBERED
R 5 B R
HAbRRE

reeEs (),
EENRE

22

ReRBEEEY(E)
(o) B B AT &= A B AL = E B (FT
B/ EEZREHER
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BoaE AR¥T T ARETIT
227,564 395,299
7(0) 76,135 37,758
7(0) 140 140
7(@) 30,057 48,577
6 = (97,085)
7(0) 2,090 -
(280,411) 326,551
(757,122) 161,989
289,081 (135,059)
(412,466) 738,170
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23 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 23 ERREs

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEAF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Current BPER
Secured bank loans and bank advances BEMIRITER
NERITEAR (i) 1,912,238 769,482
Bank advances under discounted BRIREWNEET
bill receivables B ERTTE K (i 41,687 4,900
Other borrowings from a related party —HEEFEMEE
(see Note 30(b)) (2REKI7E30(b)) - 51,817
Current portion of non-current JERNER A AR IRITERK
secured bank loans HIBNEREL 5 (i) 59,888 81,067
2,013,813 907,266
Non-current JEBNHA
Secured bank loans BEMIRITERK (i) 231,924 261,608
2,245,737 1,168,874
(i)  Current bank loans and bank advances carried interest at (0] ENERERITE R R IRIT R FIR N T
rates ranging from 0.83% to 4.86% (2008: 1.75% to 6.77%) 0.83%%£4.86%( — & T )\ F:
per annum. Current secured bank loans and bank advances 1.76% £ 6.77%) K E TS - Bl
were secured by the following assets and guaranteed by A EMRITERRIRITBERIIA
related parties (see Note 30(c)): TN EBEEARIBNHBEGER
(2BIMIEE30(c)) :
The Group
REE
2009 2008
—EEhE —TT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RZE 387,446 327,034
Inventories BE 101,400 22,323
Trade and bill receivables JEWE 5 BR AR K FE = 5% 171,494 59,214
Pledged deposits [REEEGEES 1,037,328 485,425
Unutilised bank facilities secured by pledged deposits for RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H =K
the Group were RMB702,723,000 as at 31 December 2009 SEEERERMEROKRE AR
(31 December 2008: RMB27,065,000). TIEE A AR 702,723,0007E (=

TTN\FF-A=+—0: AR#
27,065,000 7T) °
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23 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 23 BRRES(E)

(i

(ifl

The Group’s discounted bank acceptance bills with
recourse have been accounted for as collateralised bank
advances. The discounted bill receivables and the related
proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group’s
“Trade debtors and bill receivables” and “Bank advances
under discounted bill receivables” as at the reporting date.

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December 2009
were pledged by fixed assets with carrying amounts of
RMB263,927,000 (31 December 2008: RMB569,807,000)
and guaranteed by a related party (see Note 30(c)).

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December 2009
carried variable interest rates based on (i) the LIBOR plus
1% and (ii) 10% discount on the per annum interest rate
quoted by the People’s Bank of China in respect of three-
year borrowings (31 December 2008: (i) the LIBOR plus 1%
and (i) 5% discount on the per annum interest rate quoted
by the People’s Bank of China in respect of long-term
borrowings over 5 years).

The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year —FR

Over 1 year but less than 2 years —F L EBTBBRE
Over 2 years but less than 5 years ME BTN BBRF
Over 5 years AELAE

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

(i)

(i

AEBBRIRRIT AN BB RER
SREARIIREEMBITRR -
RIFER - AEETREE SRR R
FEUERIR | B [REEREMCRIE T iR
TRR ] BREHRREERERAS
ERRNARPTS TR

R=ZZZAF+=A=1+—8" 3%k
BEEHEARITEREAARE
263,927,000t (ZZEZNF+=A
=+—H: AK#¥569,807,0007T)
METEEERAET AKIFLAE
R (2B 30()) °

RZZEZNF+=R=+—H 3
ENEAE MR RITE FIGIRIF B F =
B BRFEIFRIZ () mBERTT
[RIZEHF BN % K (i) 7 B A RIRTTER
B=FHEEFHNETIZ10%THE
“EENF+ZA=+—H: (e
FERTTRIZEHRF BN1% K (i) PEIAR
RITAMAFHIALEEFMET

E5%EHE) -

AEEEIEANHRITERIR TFIH
RIEE :

The Group

rEE
2009 2008
—EENEF —ZETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
59,888 81,067
45,352 82,948
186,572 167,857
- 10,803
231,924 261,608
291,812 342,675
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24 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(@)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions
passed on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted a
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option”)
whereby one executive director and 25 employees of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for shares of
the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO
Option is 8,400,000 shares which were granted on 12
June 2009 with the subscription price of HKD2.52 per
share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Option has a
vesting period of one to three years commencing from
3 July 2009, being the listing date of the shares on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and the options are
exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Company has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
the option in cash.

24 BREZGEEURDI/ERENMNRK

(@)

BRARBEREREE
REBE-BRRR_-_ZTHEFRX
A+ -HBBNEERFER -
ARARRBERRFEEAE
st E ((BERRAEENE
BHERTED) - Bt - ARE1 4
HITEZER2BAEERR TR
BARR B HORER] o

RIR B IR A RS B IR R
i B IR R R B AT (R AT T
217 B9 IR 10 48 21 & 8,400,000
B BER-_ZTZAFEANA
TZHEE REERER
2.52 7L ©

BORBERRAEEMNBER
BMEOWERERBSNS—
E=F (ARDRBERME EH
B -_ZZhEF+LA=RATL
mEHD)ER) REREATRN+
FHIRATTE - AR B L FE
TREFTEME UREE@
B RERAHE -
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B R ER AR BTEE

24 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 24

(continued)

(@ Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(#&)

@ BERAFREES

BERSBGEUARORERNNARK

IR AR 8 (48)

() Theterms and conditions of the grants are as (i) CERBRENGREGLE
follows: mE
Contractual life
Number of of options
options Vesting conditions BREN
BREHE ER R SRR
Options granted to a director 600,000 30% on both of the first 10 years
—on 12 June 2009 and second anniversary of 104
Y —Z =B R the Listing Date, 40% on
—-RZZETNFEAA+=H the third anniversary of the
Listing Date
FHEHREBFR
FEZRFHRI0%
LT HAENE
FE=RFER40%
Options granted to employees — 7,800,000 30% on both of the first 10 years
on 12 June 2009 and second anniversary of 104
KT EENERE the Listing Date, 40% on
—RZZEZNFEANAT+=H the third anniversary of the
Listing Date
TFHEBEE—BFR
FEZRFHRI0%
LT HAEE
FE=RFER40%
Total share options 8,400,000

B A

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR BT RE

24 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 24 REZEEURMGAERHLR
(continued) (#&)
(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BXRXARAZRSHIERETSI(E)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise (i) BRENSE RMNEFY
prices of share options are as follows: TEENT :

Exercise Number of
price options
HKD ’000 shares
TEE BREHE

T4

Outstanding at the beginning FARARTTEE

of the year = -
Granted during the year FAFH 2.52 8,400
Forfeited during the year FRRI 2.52 200
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ F 4 [& ARTT{E 2.52 8,200
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ F4&A] F17{E 2.52 =
No share options were exercised during the year. ARFE AR T(E -
The share options outstanding at 31 December R-ZEZNFE+-_A=+—H " HAE
2009 had an exercise price of HKD2.52 and a TEMEBRERNITEE R 2.52 8T R
weighted average remaining contractual life of 9.5 METEE TR EAERRR 2955 ©
years. No options and rights were outstanding as BRARBEERBRERAREANE
at 31 December 2008 as the Pre-IPO Option has WA —EENF+_A=+—H
not been granted during that year. I A M AR TIE A B AR A o
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24 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)

(@ Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(iii)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of service received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on the Binomial Model. The
contractual life of the share options is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the Binomial Model.

24 BREZGEEURO/ERENMNRK

(#&)

(@) BERAFBEMBRETEI(E)

(iii)

Fair value at grant date R BB AR E
Share price B fE

Exercise price 1T1E(E

Expected volatility TEHR 1@

Expected Option life T BR A A i BARR
Expected dividend yield rate TEHRRR B e

Risk-free interest rate = @ B 1 R
The expected volatility and expected dividend
yield rate are based on the average volatilities
and dividend vyield rates in the similar industry.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&E#&EEAR QT

BRENAAERRBR

15 o Ascve T s R e BR 7%
NRE - H2REERY
BRENAAEE-B
RhBREET AR ER
E-IAARE B E LS
B - BRENADOERTD
ARAFTAMEER -
RATENEHEAAZ
TRARR o

Granted in June 2009
—ETEAFERE

HKD7,650,000
HKD2.52
HKD2.52

56%

10 years
1.50%
3.029%

TEHTR B N TR HARS B W
RTERBUTE TSR
B N I B ek TR
BEAFERA A -
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24 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole
shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12 June
2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then has been granted
and have yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in the absence of the shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Unless approved by the
shareholders, no option may be granted to any person
which if exercised in full would result in the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options already granted or to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
share option) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such new
grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year.

24 BREZGEEUROR/ERNMNR
(%)

(b)

Bt Sl

BREE-BRRR_-_ZThEX
A+t-—RBBENZEERER
ARB IR — BB IR E
(MEhtEstEll) -

HITER BB R E B ALK
B EREMEREFEERE
BB TITEMMEERE
TR A LT R R A
2E - EEDNSRERAMERR
T ARTEBBIREITR
0 BEHI30% ° ITREERZA
TRHSHTFREBRER (2
REITE - BURRKRITERER
) HEBITESEERN A
HBITABTET AIR12E
AREBRRLER  m&ZA
TREZBEETSBRR G
EHZEBTRMAE1% -

3 P 48 P AR U2 B RO T 81 153K
RARREZSETNHEA
BERFTTE - MAMMEAE R
B HEF TSHBEIB 104

ARE I EAR R B AT B
AREZ AR HREAHE -
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R RMEE
25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 REBNEZRRRHEMENRE
The Group The Company
rEEHE ¥ /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAFE ZTTN\F ZBEAFE ZTTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTrT AR¥®TR ARETET
Trade and bill payables FERE SRR
PYIRES A 192,251 24,885 - -
Dividends payable FEATRR R - 45,704 - -
Other taxes payable E e R IE 76,201 32,917 - -
Receipts in advance B FRIE 39,053 1,452 = =
Accrued interest on RERER
shareholder’s loans FEST S
(see Note 30(b)) - 7,333 - -
Accrued port services fee and  fEzHE M fR7% &
other expenses REMMAST 36,164 7,776 = =
Amount due to subsidiaries - - 219,502 -
Other miscellaneous payables  H{ih ZE I8 Bt /I8 26,435 3,928 26 -
370,104 128,995 219,528 -
Credit terms granted to the Group by its suppliers ranged from AREBHERR T AEENEEHS
0 to 30 days. An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of TE=THNE - AEEENE SR
the Group is as follows: A RENEERNERRDITIT ¢
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZETENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBTTT
Within 1 month —EAR 190,429 23,414
Over 1 month but less —@ A E
than 3 months BTEEE=1EH 968 1,159
Over 3 months but less =@EAKE
than 6 months BB E A 854 312

192,251 24,885

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - RERERE
(@  Movements in components of equity @ EEIHHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBEKHOEEERNEY
balances of each component of the Group’s RER S RSN iR e Em
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated K o AR REARIE=EIHR
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in F R FRE B FEISE G0
the Company’s individual components of equity between N

the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company NN F]
Share-based
compensation
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange reserve  Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve  ARBBER losses Total

Bx  REE  EMER  ENBR  ZMERR  EAHER ait
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ARMTR  ARMTR ARMTZ  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

At 4 March 2008 R=FZ/\E=ARA
(date of incorporation), (KAL)
at31Decomber 2008 M=FBNETA=1-H
andat 1 Januay2000  R=EENE-B-A - - - - - - -

Foreign currency IEREES

translation difference - - - (407) - - (407)
Avising from the REfiEs

Reorganisation 26(0)(i) 88 - 658,719 - - - 658,807
Capitalisation issue BMLES 260} 66,039 (66,039) - - - - -
Issuance of shares by FRENARRE

Iital Publ Ofeing.~~~ B7R13 Bo 202 533429 - - - - AT

lssuance of shares under ~ REEBREMRE
the over-alotment option ~ FRRIERTRRIA

related to the placement 26(0)(v) 3,305 79,987 - - - - 83,202
Shareissung expenses  IRGE/THR - (52,744) - - - - (52,744)
Equity-settled FEREE RN

share-based payments  AERAINTE 26(c)vi) - - - - 2,090 - 2,090
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (5,307) (5,307)
At31Decmber2000  —EEAE-A=+-A o147 4463 658719 (401) 2,090 (B307) 1,261,202
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S py S YR
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 26 EBEX - ZERRE(Z)
(b)  Share capital (o) BEAR
The Group and the Company AEBRAAT
2009 2008
“EEhE “ZTNF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Note RE x| ey G
Pirsk RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Authorised HE
Ordinary shares of FREE0108TT
HKDO.10 each L ER (i)  20,000,000,000 1,763,000 3,800,000 348
Ordinary shares, TER BT
issued and fully paid R 2
At 1 January —A—A 1 - - -
Share issued upon iNzali e =]
incorporation BI1ik{n 0 - - 1 =
Issuance of new shares  1RIEEALEITHIK
pursuant to
the Reorganisation (il 999,999 88 - -
Capitalisation issue ERILET (i) 749,000,000 66,039 = -
Issuance of sharesby ~ BiBE XA
Initial Public BERTRG
Offering (iv) 250,000,000 22,042 - -
Issuance of shares under 1R A B EH)
the over-allotment FRER AL A
option related Bk
to the placement (v) 37,500,000 3,305 - -
1,037,500,000 91,474 1 -

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)  Share capital (continued)

U

(i)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 March 2008 with an authorised share
capital of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000
shares of par value HKDO0.10 each. On 4 March
2008, 1 share of par value HKDO0.10 in the
Company was allotted, issued and fully paid
to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as
the initial subscriber, which was subsequently
transferred by Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited to Mr. Xu on the same day. On 12 June
2009, Mr. Xu transferred his one share to Fortune
Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”, the
ultimate holding company of the Group).

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, on 12 June 2009,
999,999 shares credited as fully paid were allotted
and issued to Fortune Pearl, in consideration
for the acquisition by the Company of the entire
equity interest of Qinfa Investment, an intermediate
holding company of the Group.

26 EX > BERRE(Z)

() AR E)

U)

(i)
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RN ZTENF=H
/B fE B 2 B S aE A
S VA TE R 7R /380,000
7 7T+ 9 /43,800,000 A%
f% ™ 1E0.107% T B
he RZZEZENEF
=ZAmEB - A2E K
E 1B &0.10% T B %
MEBREZERETT
Codan Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited( {E
R FRET ) - Codan
Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited H&RRF B &KHE
EETHREE - R
ZANFANATZH %
EEBEFEN KRR
% ¥ 2 T FortunePearl
International Limited
([Fortune Pearl] (Zx&=[E
RIRPERAR])) ©

G

BEES  R_TThEF
7N A+ = H 0 999,999 ;%
R ABRS R - g
K277 F Fortune Pearl
AARRRINEREIRE
(AEE—RHEBEZERA
A]) R ERAREARE o
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009, the
authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HKD380,000 to
HKD2,000,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 19,996,200,000 shares of HKDO0.10
each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009,
749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in
the Company were issued at par value on 3 July
2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the
share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange.

On 3 July 2009, 250,000,000 ordinary shares
of HKDO.10 each were issued at a price of
HKD2.52 per share under the Initial Public Offering
and the International Placing. The proceeds of
HKD25,000,000 (equivalent to RMB22,042,000)
representing the par value, were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HKD605,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB533,429,000), before the issuing expenses,
were credited to the share premium account.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

26 EX - BERRE(Z)

(b)

BRA (A8)

(i)

(V)

BRAQNAKE—RERZ
EENFAAt+-H®A
BEEAZER AR
A B9 FE AR AN B RS 18 5%
19,996,200,000 % A%
A {H0.1078 T 2 1 I’
7 E4380,0007% T i &
2,000,000,000 77T °

BRANGE—RER=Z
ThENA+TZHBRAE
H2RZER  BREARR
AR D OB 22 BT T 18 AR
7 & {8 B& 9 74,900,000
BL(BHERARE
66,039,0007T ) # £ &
7K+ 7K A 7] 749,000,000
B SRR EE0.10 BT S
RZBZENFEA=RHIEK
E{EZEAT °

RZZZTAFLA=
B AQRREBEXA
FAEENMBEBREEERS
B%2.52 7% 7T B (B 1% B 1T
250,000,000 A% &F f% ® &
010 T2 EBK ° Fri5
X 78 25,000,000 7t ( 48
% M A R #22,042,000
7t) (FBEME) FFAR AR
ZIRARA o HERFTISFRIE
605,000,000 7% 7T (FAE R
AR #533,429,0007T)
EMBREEITHRASZ 280+ 71
AR R ERRA o
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)  Share capital (continued)

V)

On 22 July 2009, the underwriters of the
International Placing exercised the over-allotment
option for the issuance of 37,500,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each at HKD2.52 per share.
The proceeds of HKD3,750,000 (equivalent
to RMBS3,305,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HKD90,750,000
(equivalent to RMB79,987,000), before the issuing
expenses, were credited to the share premium
account.

(c) Reserves

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of the Group as at 1 January
2008 and 31 December 2008 represented
the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of
the companies comprising the Group at the
respective dates after elimination of investment in
subsidiaries.

Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009,
749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each in
the Company were issued at par value on 3 July
2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the
share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange.

26 EX > BERRE(Z)

() AR E)

W)

(i)
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RZBZENFEAZ+=
H BEREENEHED
T BEIRE XS
A% 2.527%8 ot B (B 18 3 1T
37,500,000 % & i m &
0108 T2 E B °
FfT 15 3% 18 3,750,000 7% 7©
(FBER AR 3,305,000
7T) (FEEME) EFARAT
ZIRAA o HERFTSRIE
90,750,000 7 7T ( #8 55 1A
A K #79,987,0007T )
EHBRBEITAI ZAT * 5
AR R ERRA o

B e

R=BB\F-A-AR
—EE\E+-A=t-
B A ARG B A
ERARENEAANHE
CEENCATE NG PN
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IR 438 E

BRARRE—RER=-F
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EEARZER  FBRBEARD
A1 BR 19 7 Bt 22 BT £ T 1&
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BIR(HER AR
66,039,0007t ) # {E &
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(©

Reserves (continued)

(ii)

Share premium (continued)

250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in
the Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share
under the Initial Public Offering on 3 July 2009. The
excess of the proceeds totalling HKD605,000,000
(equivalent to RMB533,429,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares
issued, less certain listing costs of HKD49,562,000
(equivalent to RMB43,699,000) incurred in
connection with the issue of the share capital,
amounting to HKD555,438,000 (equivalent to
RMB489,730,000), were credited to the share
premium account.

An additional 37,500,000 ordinary shares of
HKDO0.10 each in the Company were issued
at HKD2.52 per share on 22 July 2009
pursuant to the over-allotment option related
to the International Placing. The excess of the
proceeds totalling HKD90,750,000 (equivalent
to RMB79,987,000) over the nominal value of
the total number of ordinary shares issued, less
certain listing costs of HKD10,259,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,045,000) incurred in connection
with the issue of share capital, amounting to
HKD80,491,000 (equivalent to RMB70,942,000),
were credited to the share premium account.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

26 EX - BERRE(Z)

(b)

BRA (A8)

(i)

BRADRME (4F)
R=ZZTTZAFLA=H"
RATREERARE
ERE K252/ TR (E
% % 17250,000,000 %
& Kk mE0.10% T Z
LT@AR - B HIEAF
605,000,000/ T ( #8 &
» A R #588,429,000
T REBITEBREH
BEvEHBEBEMNSE:
MR BITEE A
F £ ™ A 4549,562,000
BILT(EHERARE
489,730,0007T) % * EA
R ¥ 555,438,000 7 7t (48
Z 1 A R ¥ 489,730,000
7)) ET ARG EEA o

n

RZBEZNFEAZ+Z=
H BEBEKREESHESA
2 HBERRE - KK
2.52 7% JT ) {8 1§ 58 5 B
737,500,000 8% & A% @
B0.10%8 7T 2 L BAR °
Ffr 15 3k 384 51 90,750,000
BILT(HERAR
79,987,0007T ) B B #1T
TEREHE cHER
HE £ % MR RA
BITEAZET LT
710,259,000 Jt (#1 5%
B A R #9,045,0007T )
% » # AR % 80,491,000
BIL(HEERARE
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(©)

Reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium (continued)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium account are
distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve as at 31 December 2008
represents the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of Perpetual, Liberal,
Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Trading, Qinfa International
and Super Grace and the amount of share capital
of Qinfa Investment, issued to Fortune Pearl on
6 October 2008 in exchange for the entire equity
interests in the above six companies as part of the
Reorganisation.

Merger reserve as at 31 December 2009
represents the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries of
the Company and the amount of share capital of
the Company transferred and issued to Fortune
Pearl in exchange for the entire equity interests
in all members of the Group as part of the
Reorganisation.

26 EX > BERRE(Z)

(b)

B (&)

(i)

(iii)

B4 ME ()

BOaEERZERXRAE
BERREEE - RIEH
EBERAE - BINEE
ZEEANIRTARER
R HEEBEHED RS
ZB#%  RARBARAE
X BiETEEIHE
& o

R ]

RZZEZNF+=A
i el = WA S e e
Perpetual - Liberal « Z=3%
ME REZH - FEH
B K Super Grace KB4
BARBEEIEREHEN—
o ARG EMASEA
AI2HMEREMR_ZE
J\F + A 75 HRFortune
Pearl EH{THWHRZFHREN
A& 2 PR =58 o

RZZEZNF+ = A
=t+—HZAHREEEAN
ARINFBARNESE
RABFEEIE REHM —EB
D RRBAEEMAK
B A a2z & bR M W
Fortune Pearl &5 & 3877
AR RIMAR A R =
B o
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@

Reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Reserves

Reserves were established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of the companies comprising
the Group which are established in the PRC.
Appropriations to the reserves were approved by
the respective shareholders’ meetings.

Reserves include statutory reserves and
discretionary reserves. For the entity concerned,
statutory reserves can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to the existing
equity interests of investors, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the reporting date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Notes 2(c) and 2(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(b).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents
value of employee services in respect of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Option as set
out in Note 24(a).

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

26 EBEX - RERRE(E)

(b)

[ENE-))

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

&

fFEH Ty IRIEAR R B R
KR RRIA R R BS MR AR 5=
30 £ Bl A L B &
RAMEBEZREY -
EORCESKRRSH
#E °

REPEEERERER
f#fE - EEERmS -
YA TE AR ] AR S 2 Al
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of debts to equity ratio.
For this purpose the Group defines debt as total loans
and borrowings and equity as total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company.

The debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2009 and
2008 was as follows:

Debt to equity ratio EFGEREES L R

26 EX > BERRE(Z)

(@

BEARERE

AEBEREAZEERRTS
REEAEEENEBEREFE
RERERE NEFEBER
BKFAAIE 2 B fn BRI E B
ARESAEKRAZBE - #
BRBRRAED R K A H MR
SFFA AR o

AEBEESR L EREERNRE
ETRARER  WERSK
ROHmBERTAIEHEZRD
fEE KT8 R 4 B AR 75 2
28 B R ARIE 2 B EAS T 1
I A R MM 2 B E AR
RiBfELAE -

MEFEG —1 > NEELE
BHERH R REEEREE
AR - B AKERERR
EREFRREERE Mg
BRER/ARA DA AR
AR -

R-EBEZAF+_A=+—H
REFSERE R L AT

2009 2008
—EBhF —TENF
163.06% 159.04%
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B R ERARBTRE

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends paid to equity shareholders
attributable to the year

Interim dividend declared and

paid during the year 2 EAAR B

According to the written resolution of the
directors’ meeting passed on 11 June 2009, Qinfa
Trading declared a special interim dividend of
HKD100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,152,000)
to its then equity shareholder. Such dividend was
fully paid on 26 June 2009.

FARDEIREZ A

26 EX - BERRE(Z)

© MBS

) FRERBBEALLZ
RE

2009 2008

—FENE  —BINF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTE  ARMTR

88,152 =

BER_ZEENFARA
+—HEABREETRE
HRER  RBEHMAE
FriEmts B ASIRH R
£.100,000,0007% Jt( 48
Z N A R 88,152,000
L) ZREERZ=ZZTE
NENAZTABEHEX
i o

Dividends payable to the equity holder (i) BEVBRFEESERS
attributable to previous financial years, BAEAFASIRRE#EE
declared and approved during the year ZIRE
2009 2008
—EBNF T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Dividends declared and FRNEIREHEZ RS
approved during the year —REEE5
— Qinhuangdao Trading - 120,341

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the board of
directors’ meeting on 1 August 2008, a dividend
of RMB120,341,000 was declared to the equity
holder of Qinhuangdao Trading.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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PR ERAR BT RE

27

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit risk, interest risk, currency risk and liquidity

risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount.

At the reporting date, the Group had no significant
concentration of credit risk with any of its customers.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
does not provide any guarantee which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the group are
responsible for their own cash management, but the
borrowings are subject to approval by the parent
company’s management. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

27
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B R ERARBTRE

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(o)  Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual

maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s

non-derivative financial liabilities which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates or, if

floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and

the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

27 SREREERAARE(E)

mBE R (&)

TRFAVNARE 2 FITEM T
BERTEMBRER RS H
ZHRBAWEHME FRZB
B HARTRESRE (B
EERGHOMNERFEZFEN
Fo HWAFEE - RIREER
ERZMEAE) URAEER]
BERN R &R A METE -

Year ended 31 December 2009

BE-_ERNF+-A=t-HLEE

More than
Total  Within one one year
undiscounted year or and less than
Carrying cash flow on demand five years
amount RERE —FRZH —F#&
IREE REREHE RER BEERA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTRE AR%®TR AR®BTR
Loans and borrowings EREEE 2,245,737 2,304,571 2,063,649 240,922
Trade and other payables & SR
R E At FE AT BR AR 370,104 370,104 370,104 -
2,615,841 2,674,675 2,433,753 240,922
Year ended 31 December 2008
BE_TTN\F+-RA=1+—HILFE
Total Within one More than one
undiscounted year or  year and less
Carrying cash flow on demand than five years More than
amount RAEER —FRK —F1% five years
FHE Renes BREX BRER hLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARETRE ARETT
Loans and ERREE
borrowings 1,168,874 1,198,020 920,426 264,086 13,508
Trade and B R
other payables ~ KEMEMERR 123,995 123,995 123,995 - -
1,292,869 1,322,015 1,044,421 264,086 13,508

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27 SREREERAARE(E)

(continued)
() Interest rate risk € FIEER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans AEBZHNERBREEZREE
and borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and KREE - ] EFE Rk EE
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest MEREAZEEGAREFD R
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. AXESRENRER &AL
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by EEMEER BEEEEZ
management is set out in (i) below: 7N £ B 1| SRR B X () ©
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZ=ER
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFAIAEB 2ER R
the Group’s loans and borrowings at the reporting BRRERE B 2 = -
date:
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
“EENE —TTN\F
Effective Effective
Interest Carrying interest Carrying
Rate value rate value
BRA=E REE ERFI= ElE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTL ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings:  EEFZEE
Bank loans RITEH 0.83%-4.86% 1,842,196  4.16%-6.48% 649,545
Less: pledged deposits o BEEER 0.36%-2.25% (1,037,328) 4.14% (485,425)
804,868 164,120
Variable rate borrowings: A& FREE :
Bank loans RITER 1.23%-5.64% 403541  1.75%-7.44% 467,512
Other borrowings from RE-BER
arelated party MEMBEE - 0.46%-3.70% 51,817
403,541 519,329
Total net borrowings EEFHE 1,208,409 683,449
Net fixed rate borrowings EERREEFHE
as a percentage of FARERE
total net borrowings HEA 66.61% 24.01%
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B R ERARBTRE

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in the interest rates of variable
rate borrowings prevailing at the reporting date,
with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB2,778,000
and RMB3,598,000 for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008 respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax and consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at the reporting date. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2008.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT
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PR ERAR BT RE

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange.
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely
by supply and demand. The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily through purchases and
borrowings that are denominated in USD, while all the
other operations of the Group are mainly transacted in
RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the RMB value of
purchase costs of commodities that are denominated in
foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate.

27 SREREERAARE(E)

SN LB

ARBIAERALBRRINE -
FBERARBHNINER 0
AEBPRARBITREME
REREEIEREET -
SN 32 55 P ER R B9 BE 2K 75 o
ARBITHHNERX - ZEE
RTIBHHEKETE - AKED
SMNERBR EE KRB AXTIE
MWEEREE  MAKERT
BHEMEBTIZUAARKET
R BREHTEIUINES

ENEmORBRANARE
BfE -
TRETAEENGEE AL

H
HEEEHNERNNERR
MO BT ENCDRRBEE
SREMEENEBRR

2009 2008
—senE —TENF

USD’000 HKD’000 USD’000 HKD’000

FX70 FHET FET FAT

Cash and cash equivalents I8 & KR & EEY) 80 21,967 573 =
Trade and other receivables FEfHE 5 R

Ko FE P R0IE 900 - - -
Trade and other payables  FEUE 5 8RK

R HABARIE (34,853) = = -

Loans and borrowings BERREE (87,168) - (3,725) -

(121,041) 21,967 (3,152) -
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B R ERARBTRE

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27 SREREERAARE(E)

(continued)
(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (d)
The following table demonstrates the changes in the

USD and HKD exchange rates during the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008:

UsD EH

— Average rate —

— Reporting date mid-spot rate —R¥E BB EE
HKD BT

— Average rate — =X

— Reporting date mid-spot rate — R B EAR AR RE(E

Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the reporting date had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&ER&EEAR QT

SRR ()
TREFRBE_TTAFR
—ET/A\Ft-A=+-8B1t
FEHETERNSE -
2009 2008
—®2BAE —TTNF
6.8311 6.9480
6.8282 6.8346
0.8813 0.8919
0.8805 0.8819
SN SR D47

TR G R A B2 BB 4
(RARB%F) BHEE A ESR
2 AR EE REEARL
SDETEARR) MEEZD
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27 SRBEBREERAAEE)

(continued)
(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued) @) INERR(E)
The Group INEH
2009 2008
—BThE —EENE

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on

(decrease) profit (decrease) profit

in foreign after tax and in foreign  after tax and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

% HERBIE fe HRTiA

t#/  BIRRE R BFIRRE

(F¥k) BAz¥E (F&) Bz E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARETT

usD T 5% 30,993 5% 808

(5%) (30,993) (5%) (808)

HKD BT 5% (743) 5% —

(5%) 743 (5%) -
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table BRRE DT T RRE R EFHRN
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects EEHEKEE  WEERAR
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity REEZEBRZ B AR
measured in the respective functional currencies, REEBITE(RE®REN @ BiR
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the HREBZEXRRBABARKE)Z
reporting date for presentation purposes. RNEF BB R 2 BN & O

R o
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B ISR AR BT RE

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(@

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
reporting date, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency and other investments. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (see Note 16).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange. The Group observes
the invested company’s operation and development,
and seeks to obtain an understanding of their business
management through participation in their directors’
meetings.

m China Qinfa Group Limited HERZ&E#&EEAR QT
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(e)

Equity price risk (continued)

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 1% in the
respective quoted share prices of these financial assets,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s fair value reserve as
follows:

The Group

Change in the relevant FE B AT R E R B
equity price risk variable KB B

Increase 0

Decrease A

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s fair value reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the respective quoted
share prices has occurred at the reporting date and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to equity
price risk at the reporting date. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant share price that none of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets would be considered
impaired as a result of the short term fluctuation of
the relevant share, and that all other variables remain
constant. No such financial assets were held as at 31
December 2008.

27 SHEAREERAARE(E)

RER ()

BRZEcMm T AL ERMR
BN, TR 1% - EfbFTA &
ERBIE  KEEQALEIE

m/ TR

REM

2009

=5

Effect on other

components of equity

R HAMAA R ER D
:0p-2

RMB’000

ARBT T

1% 304
1% (304)

R SHFIR T AR
EEBYUAREL L EES

FRENREZE -  ERENT
TREEEAAFRREZS R L

R&&ER YEERZEHE
HEASHAREELERE
Wﬂﬁ%%ﬂlﬂZﬁ@ &
BRAGERSREZ DA EE
BIREBEEE BREZHH
HELEES: BRRAKEZA
TﬁﬁhéTlm@hFZL
HRR B M AR E R RA& —
HMBEERam T # - m_g
ENFF+ZRA=+—H #iE
REZSEREE -
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B R ER AR BTEE

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(®) Fair value

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
reporting date across three levels of the fair value

BARERENESRTIA

TRZBERT B RE
EADELHK [T H :
T)EZ?EJ PRENDIAEE

hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: =B IR TRWmE

Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial = J«A“ﬁfﬁ?imﬁrﬂl

instrument categorised in its entirety based on BIREEEB - ST AR

the lowest level of input that is significant to that BARBESERTRA
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as NEZ2HNHEERD
follows: o —EEBERNT :

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured e ER—(HZmE):
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active NREBENERT
markets for identical financial instruments HhEESMITA

HRE(CREFAE)
TE °

o Level 2: fair value measured using quoted o R=—: RAEE
prices in active markets for similar financial LAYE BB T 45 AR FE (A
instruments, or using valuation techniques TR T AR RERE
in which all significant inputs are directly or E OERMER
indirectly based on observable market data ot - 1A 51 £

BRFEEZERH
B # ok B % R
A RN TS H
% o

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured D BEX=(xEE):
using valuation techniques in which any AREEERMKE
significant input is not based on observable HiiEE  [HER
market data FTANMBEEZS

HHRFEE A BE
BT IS EUE
The Group NEH
2009
—EEAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BR— Bxr= Bx= &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥BTT AR%®TR AR%TxR
Available-for-sale  AItHE S BEE
financial assets 30,390 - - 30,390
During the year there were no significant transfers FR - AEERBR—KER

between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

() Fair value (continued)

(ii)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values as at 31
December 2009 and 2008 respectively.

(@) Estimation of fair values

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2009 and 2008 due to either the short
maturities or variable market interest rate for long-
term bank borrowings.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options under the Pre-
IPO Option is measured using the Binomial
Model. Measuring inputs include the offer price,
the exercise price, the risk-free rate of interest,
expected option period, expected volatility
and expected dividend. Service and non-
market performance conditions attached to
the transactions are not taken into account in
determining the fair value.

N

> 2

ETENE@T
SE

B
28:0)
AEER-_FTNFRZ
ETN\E+-_HA=1—H
E&$ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ§m
TRTAMEmERSA
v@ﬁﬁﬁ

@ fEtarE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AHHESRMEE

AHEESREENAR
BERHEBERTISRE
ETETE - B TRIRE
AIZXZRA

BERREE

BERRHARITEEAERR
HA 2| B gk Al B T 5 7 2R

RS - Bt ERRE

ERBEH_TTNFR
—EENFt+ZA=T—
HZARBEEETANE®
RHtE -

LRGBRER 2R S

EANGE S0l e 3
TERBRER D A ETER
A-IAAREETAE -
AAEENBREEE 1T
EE - REMEER - &
HAEAREE - TRENE) TR
HIRLE. - IRF R IEM SR
BIGHEL T ABEAR
BEOREA -
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B R ER AR BTEE

28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BEAXRAE
Capital commitments outstanding at the year end not provided REFERWARRERE M BHRE
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: STRBENRBITEANREN
™
The Group NEE
2009 2008
—BENE ZETENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Authorised but not contracted for B AEERETL 313,420 5,000
Contracted for EETHY 1,251,561 45,853
1,564,981 50,853
29 OPERATING LEASES 29 KEHE
(@) Leases as lessee @ fEREBAZEE

REREH > AEREREA
HELEHOR YRR A

At each reporting date, the total future minimum lease

payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of properties are payable as follows: BREAERIBRENT :
2009 2008
—EEhEF T NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Within 1 year —FA 5,945 5,711
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 19,576 18,506
After 5 years AFE 8,210 12,719
33,731 36,936

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT
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PR AR BT RE

29 OPERATING LEASES (continued) 29 RKEHE(E)
(b) Leases as lessor (b) ERHBEAZEE

The Group leases out its vessels under operating leases AEBEREBELEHOELHAES
and the future minimum lease income under non- Y MARE N EE A E A
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: ® B RHEEFIBBREL T ¢

2009 2008

—EBENE e AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Within 1 year —FKN - 5,227
30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BELRRS
The Group has transactions with Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry AEBERFESREEESEGRA
Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”) and Mr. Xu. Mr. Xu is the AIRBEE]) RIREEETRS °
shareholder of Qinfa Industry and Fortune Pearl, the ultimate BREEBRBEENANEBEREIER
controlling party of the Group. 75 Fortune Pearl FAZER o
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and RIBZNER-_FTENFEFE K
the above related parties for the years 2009 and 2008 are as SEE FMBETNEARSFIEN
follows: T 8
(@)  Significant related party transactions @ BEEABEELIRS
() Recurring transactions (i) KEMHRS:
2009 2008
—ETAF —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Operating leases from ETRAIRE -

- Qinfa Industry —RBEEX 1,209 1,209
The directors of the Company are of the opinion RNRAREERR - Ll
that the above related party transactions were B R 5 IR A KB
conducted on terms no less favourable to the ENBREHTEIE=
Group than terms available to or from independent F kBN = iR
third parties, and in the ordinary course of B RN BB EBBE
business. RETS ©
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B R ER AR BTEE

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

30 BEEARF(E)

(@  Significant related party transactions (continued) (@

(ii)

Non-recurring transactions

EXEEIRS (&)

(i) HFLEHERS :

Interest-bearing borrowings from  FHEEEHR B
—Mr. Xu —IREE
Interest charge FEXH
Repayment of interest-bearing BEGFEEE
borrowings to
—Mr. Xu —REE
Paid by the Group on behalf of REBRA
— Qinfa Industry —RBEX
(o)  Amounts due to related parties (b)
Shareholder’s loan AR ER
—Mr. Xu —REE
Accrued interest FEETHIE
Dividend payable to Qinfa Industry, — [EfRIEEZ
the equity holder of (REEE R
Qinhuangdao Trading FEAN) ZRE

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

2009 2008
—2ThE —TBNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR
71,328 50,480
116 87
130,594 2,473
- 25,471

P B HE
2009 2008
—SEAFE  —2BNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETT
- 51,817
- 7,333
- 59,150
- 45,704
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PR AR BT RE

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEFRS (&)
(continued)
(c) Guarantees issued by related parties (€ FEEFREAER
2009 2008
—EBENE e AN
thousand thousand
Tt T
Guarantees issued by Mr. Xu BIETET BMER -
- RMB —AR¥ 440,000 635,340
- HK Dollars — BT 320,000 170,000
— US Dollars —%7T 59,370 75,088
Guarantees issued by Qinfa Industry RRBEFETAMER
- RMB —ARE 200,000 100,000
(d)  Key management personnel remuneration e FREBREATHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AREEBRREESEEATHEE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s (BENFIEENT A FTAR
directors as disclosed in Note 9 and certain of the AEENSBERMTZ10RED
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 10, is as BENTETRERENZRSHM)
follows: T:
2009 2008
—ZEEAF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Directors’ fee s 256 -
Salaries, allowances and AR - R
benefits in kind NE W& 4,186 2,450
Contributions to retirement R AT BT
benefit schemes 42 5]
Discretionary bonuses BIISTEAL 4,738 -
Share-based payments LARE 1R BB 3R 817 -
10,039 2,485
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B R ER AR BTEE

31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31 EHEMEMRREBEE-ZZTIEF
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT T BR=t+t—BLEEEERZH
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 7] > FERI R REBA A RER
DECEMBER 2009
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB BEZSUHBHREATIZER - B2
has issued the following amendments, new standards and L%EU%,%QE%WT@J{ =T - ;FE_EEIJ
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended kR BEREE_ZEZNF+_H
31 December 2009 and which have not been adopted in these =T —HIEFERARER - TIRR
financial statements. ZETE TR PN -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 Bz &R
WETHEEXN
Revised IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International 1 July 2009
B PR B 75 3 5 22 A 28 1 55k (BB RT) Financial Reporting Standards —EEhF+EA—H
BRI B R SR
Revised IFRS 3 Business combinations Applied to business combinations
BB GRS 2RI 35k (BBIER])  HEKED for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009
HARKEBERA-_TTNSF
+tA—RAsZ &R & E
FERERRRASGE Bk
22 EB%adt
Amended IAS 27 Consolidated and separate 1 July 2009
RS AERISE 27 5% (AMERT) financial statements —ETNFEA—H
Ire KB SRR
Amendment to IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009
R s AERISE 30 5% (B3] AN) measurement — Eligible hedged items —EThF+EA—H
TRTA  BARAKE
—BEREPIAR

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT
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PR AR BT RE

31

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2009 (continued)

IFRIC 17

BRI RERELEE
—REEITHR

Improvements to IFRSs 2009

—“TTNFRREMHHRE LN 2o

Amendment to IFRS 1
BURR B s R 5 22 RN B 1 5 (18R] AN)

Amendments to IFRS 2
B PR B 75 3 5 22 A 28 2 55 (18R] AN)

Amendment to IAS 32
BB s 2ERIZE 32 5% (18RTA)

IFRIC 19

BRI REREEE S
—REF195%

Amendment to IFRS 1

BB B 75 S 5 HE B SE 1 5% (1B RTA)

EEMFEEARBE-BBAE
+oB=t—ALEEERZH
i STERAIRRBNTELE (2)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 B 2 2R
SHHBEXN

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

FEEADIKIFREEE

1 July 2009
—ZETNFEA—H

1 July 2009

or 1 January 2010
—EENF+EA—H
F—ET—FTF—H—H
1 January 2010
—=—Z=F—-H—H

First-time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional exemptions
for first-time adopters

B RN B R B T o5 ZE R
— BIREME 2 BN R

Share-based payment — Group cash-settled 1 January 2010

share-based payment transactions —=—ZTF—H—H

AR RER XN —SRBENRGEE
ARRD RERZNHIR 5

Financial instruments: 1 February 2010

Presentation — Classification of rights issues —Z—ZF = H—H
SRITA : 27— HiRo %
Extinguishing financial liabilities with 1 July 2010
equity instruments —T-FTF+H—H
BITREAEESHER
First-time adoption of International Financial 1 July 2010
Reporting Standards — Limited exemption —ET—FTF+H—H

from comparative IFRS 7 disclosure
for first-time adopters
B RER AN B B B T R 5 R B
— BRER AN E S BIRR B M i S 2E RIS 7 5%
HEBREENER#AR
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B R ER AR BTEE

31

32

33

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2009 (continued)

Revised IAS 24
BB 25T 2ERI S 24 557 (KYEET)
Amendment to IFRIC 14, IAS 19
B BHRERELZE®
—REE 145 (BF]A) -
B & s R 1955

Related party disclosures

BES 2 R

31

The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and
their interaction — Prepayments of
a minimum funding requirement

EHEMAESRKRBE-F2IEF
tTZA=+-BLEFEERZH
7T FEAIR RN A RERE (F)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BBk Z 2R
STHEEN

1 January 2011
—T—%F—H—H
1 January 2011
—T—%F—H—H

FEM@ZEENRE - KIEBEFMRE
REBEHEER - ANRERETRE

IFRS 9
IR 5 ¥R 5 2R RIS 9 5%

Financial instruments
ST HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. Up to the date of issuance of these financial
statements, the Group believes that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (2007) and IFRS 8 Operating segments, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year’s presentation and to provide comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further
details of these developments are disclosed in Note 3.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Fortune Pearl, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

m China Qinfa Group Limited FERZ&E#&EEAR QT

32

33

1 January 2013
—ET—=F—H—H

AEEBR L EZFERT - #HEAM
MRBENSEAMENERYE
BEZVBRRTIEB, NEBEEER
R EER] ~ TER R B AR
R AEENKEEE MNP BARNE
REREE -

LEBEF

BN ERBR S ERE 1 5% M5 HR
=g (ZTFLF) RERYH
BELNF8T [EENE] - ETH
RYFEELAE - USRI
BRI LR —FTNEFEHRH
BEHEANLEHRT - LEERNE—
SAIFRERHIEES ©

HERBRERA

R_ZTTNE+_A=+—H &=
RAENEEEET AR RERERS
A—RRABRZBESFMAK A
Fortune Pearl ° 5% & 2830 45 & 7]
NREAOIHRE -
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